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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Ardee Engineering Limited [formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private
Limited]

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Ardee Engineering Limited
[formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited] (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the standalone financial statements, including material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance under SA 720 ‘The
Auditors responsibilities relating to other information’.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standa[gg ;g:ggified under Section 133 of the Act.
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,

()

(8)

2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as
on March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

(1) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(2) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(3) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the information and
explanations provided to us by the Management in this regard nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any
material mis-statement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year, has been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled
and recorded in the in prior year as explained in Note 42 to the financial statements.

3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid /
provided by the Company to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 045995 Chartered Accountants
e ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168

I Jojors

P.V.N Sastry Jx Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner ,\{‘—',‘ft.a‘\‘___'/-«_"‘.'_" ' Partner

Membership No. 029098 0 Apaent Membership No. 231741
UDIN: 25029098BMIUNR1102 =+~ UDIN: 25231741BMLKZZ3825
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARDEE ENGINEEING LIMITED [FORMERLY KNOWN AS ARDEE
ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED]

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Director’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For MS K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
ICAI Firm Registration Number:_ Chartered Accountants
/@ﬂ KRigaX ICAl Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168
/ &4 AN
24 Nee W\

) % {{ | "y derappy, \)(I; j‘\‘)"’\.’\\/\

\ CI 3/
P.V.N Sastry \"3;-';‘? N\ ’//f_ﬁ % Tarun Kumar Jain
Partner N Anreafi Partner
Membership No. 029098 = Membership No. 231741
UDIN: 25029098BMIUNR1102 UDIN: 25231741BMLKZZ3825
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025



C. Venkat Krishna & Co M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ARDEE
ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

i (@) A The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use
assets. '

B The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets were physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all items over a period of
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of Property, Plant and Equipment
and right-of-use assets have been physically verified by Management during the year. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as disclosed in the standalone financial statements
included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress are held in the name of
the Company except for below one immovable property aggregating to Rs. 631.51 million
as at March 31, 2025. The title deeds of immovable properties aggregating to Rs. 524.70 Mn
as at March 31, 2025, are pledged with the banks/financial institutions and original copies are
not available with the Company. The same has been independently confirmed by the
banks/financial institutions to us and verified by us.

Sr. Description of | Gross Held in the Whether Period held - | Reason for not
No. | Property carrying name of title deed | Indicate being held in
value holder is a | range, where | name of
(Amount ¥ promoter, | appropriate Company
in Mn) director or
their
relative or
employee
1 Land in| 631.51 Telangana No From March | This Land was
Telangana Industrial 2025 to till | allotted to the
Infrastructure date. Company by
Corporation TGIIC Ltd and
Limited Agreement of
[TGIIC Ltd] Sale is executed
- where the

transfer of title
is subject to
precedent
conditions
agreed between
the parties -
Refer Note 5A
to the
standalone
financial
statements.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the
year. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions
stated under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The inventory (excluding stocks with third parties and stocks-in-transit) has been physically
verified by the management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties,
these have substantially been confirmed by them and in respect of goods in transit, the goods
have been received subsequent to the year end. The discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate
for each class of inventory were not noticed in respect of such confirmations. In our opinion, the
frequency, coverage and procedure of such verification is reasonable and appropriate, having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. The discrepancies noticed
on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
Rs. 5 crores rupees in aggregate from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Based on
the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the standalone financial statements,
quarterly statements filed with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has provided
guarantee to other entity.

(A) The details of such guarantee to party other than associates are as follows:

Particulars Guarantees
(Amount ¥ in Mn)

Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year

Others (Refer Note 35) 52.50

Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
above cases

- Others (Refer Note 35) 52.50

(B) During the year the Company has not provided any loans or advances (in the nature of
loans) or provided security to any other entity.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made, guarantees provided and
terms and conditions in relation to investments made, guarantees provided are not prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans to any other entity
during the year. Accordingly, provisions stated under clause 3(iii) (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of investments and guarantees provided.
Further there are no loans and security made, accordingly the provisions stated under clause 3(iv) of

the Ordgr__;qmgag_gent is not applicable to the Company.
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V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed to be deposits, within the meaning of
the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi.  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its product supplies. We have
broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of
the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, in
our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities during the year, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of these
statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, there
are no dues relating to goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transaction which are not
recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in Income-tax Assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the requirement to
report as stated under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records
of the Company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(©) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, money raised
by way of term loans during the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were
raised.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by
the Company.

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken
any funds from an any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associates.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its associate companies. Accordingly, the requirement to report under Clause 3(ix)(f) of the
order is not applicable to the Company.

x. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did
not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting requirement under clause 3(x)(a) of

the Ordegs- nat-agpllcable to the Company.
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(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partly, or optionally convertible) during
the year. Accordingly, the requirements to report under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the Company or no
material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year in the course of
our audit.

(b) During the year no report under Section 143(12) of the Act, has been filed by cost auditor or
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(xii)(a) to (c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. (@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of our audit
report, for the period under audit.

Xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and accordingly, the requirements to report under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year and accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report under clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any Core Investment Company (as part of its group. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  Based on the overall review of standalone financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash
losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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XX.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (as
disclosed in note 38 to the standalone financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent amount to a

Fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the
financial year in compliance with second proviso to Section 135(5) of the Act as explained in
Note 32 to the standalone financial statements.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent amount to a special

account within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial year in compliance with
Section 135(6) of the Act, as explained in Note 32 to the standalone financial statements.

(formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said Clause has been included in the

report.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 045995
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Membership No. 029098
UDIN: 25029098BMIUNR1102

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

For M S K C & Associates LLP

(formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168

Fujorn

Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner

Membership No. 231741
UDIN: 25231741BMLKZZ3825

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED [ARDEE ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED]

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Ardee Engineering Limited [Ardee
Engineering Private Limited] on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Ardee Engineering Limited [Formerly Known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited] (“the Company”)
as of March 31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025 based on the
internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to standalone
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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C. Venkat Krishna & Co M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference
to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For MS K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 045995 Chartered Accountants

/"“.,“\ ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168
,{Jﬁ KR US4\
1_ :\.;\_

"_Z-i Q) i H\ f>:\__/i/‘
.

%\Qa

P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner NS Partner
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UDIN: 25029098BMIUNR1102 UDIN: 25231741BMLKZZ3825
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025



Ardee Engineering Liraited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineeting Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100 rG2020P1L.C141953)

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, excepl for share and pet share data and whete otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 5 1,058.98 75751
b) Capital work-in-progress SA 804.01 -
¢) Right-of-use assels 6 4151 1946
d) Intangible assets 7/ 1.66 1.84
¢) Financial assets
(i) Investiments 8 565 5.45
(ii) Trade 1eceivables 12 142.71 80.65
(iii) Other financial assets 9 125.19 2428
1) Other assets {0 207 -
1) Deferred tax assets (net) 31 3873 28.89
Total non-current assets 2,220.51 918.08
Current assets
a) Inventories 1 1,212.28 683.53
b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 8 8.63 7.96
(if) Trade receivables 12 2,216.06 1,477.98
(iii} Cash and cash equivalents 13 1.54 1.08
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 14 166.71 24227
(v) Other financial assets 9 941,76 1,029.21
c) Other assets 1 335.95 260.12
Tatal current assets 4,882.93 3,702.15
;&al assets 7.103.44 4,620.23
Equity and liabilities
Equity
a) Equity share capital 15 200.00 200,00
b) Other equity 16 1,168.36 671.70
Total equity 1,368.36 871.70
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Bortowings 17 903,50 37171
(ia) Lease liabilities 6 28.11 10.26
b) Provisions 21 17.30 13.03
Total non-current liabilities 948.91 395.00
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 2,228.22 1,478.88
(ia) Lease liabilities 6 15.10 11,52
(ii) Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 25824 1,028,37
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,896.83 670,00
(iit) Other financial liabilities 19 28.13 77.98
b) Provisions 21 241 1.5
¢) Other current liabilities 20 335,54 79.90
d) Current tax liahilities (net) 22 21,70 4.97
Total curvent linbilities 4,786.17 3,353.53
Total liabilities 5,735.08 3,748.53
Total l.-guirg and liabilities 710344 4.620.23
See accompanying noles formit part of the standalone financial statements 1-47

As per our report of even date attached

For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0045998 Chartered Accountants

ICAI Finn Registration No.: 0015955/S000168
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P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain
Partner Partner
Membership No, 029098 Membership No, 231741

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

Chandra Sckhar Moturu
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 02010969

oanen

Krishna Kumari Moturu
Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN 10376709

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

Clhes

Ragdeep Moturu
Whole-time Ditector
DIN 07587747

Dishe Jiudat.
Disha Jindal

Company Secretary and
gmphance Officer




Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Enginecring Privale Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC 141953)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for shate and per share data and whete otherwise slated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income
Revenue fiom operations 23 7,789.03 6,209,90
Other income 24 3811 18 47
Tatal Income (1) 7,827.14 6,228.37
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 4,886.41 4,080.48
Changeés in inventories of work-in-progress 26 191,68 4.92
Employee benefits expense 27 352,28 272.56
Finance costs 28 271,96 156.01
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 60,54 35.85
Other expenses 30 1,398.28 1,265.33
Total expenses (11) 7.161.15 5.815.15
Profit before tax (I-11=111) 665.99 413.22
Tax expense 31
Current tax 179 68 101.20
Adjustment of income tax relating to earlier years (net) - 16.12
Deferred tax (9.97) 6.26
Total tax expense (1V) 169,71 123.58
Profit after tax (111-1V=V) 496.28 289.64
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 0,51 1.00

Deferred tax relating to these items (0.13) (0.25)
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax (VI) 0.38 0.75
Total comprehensive income for the year (V4VI=VI) 496.66 290.39
Eammgs per equity share (Face value of Rs.5 each) 34

Basic (In INR) 12.41 7.62

Diluted (In INR) 12.41 7.62
See accompanying notes forniing part of the standiadone financtal statements 1-47

As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Finmn Registration No.: 0045998

— ~
P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner Partner
Membership No. 029098 Membership No. 231741

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ardee Engineering Limited

For M S K C & Associates LLP
(formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

™

undra Sekhar Moturu Ragdeep Moturu
pairman and Managing Director Whole-time Director
N 02010969 DIN 07587747

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No,: 001595S/S000168

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

Krishna Kumari Moturu
Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN 10376709

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

Ditha Jrwos
Disha Jindal

Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer
Membership No, A65058




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital Note Number of shares | Amoun(
As at April 1,2023 (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 1,90,00,000 190,00
Change during the year 15 10,00,000 10 00
As at March 31, 2024 (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 2,00,00,000 200.00
Sub-division of equity shares* 15 2.00.00.000 -

As al March 31,2025 (Face Value of Rs. 5 each) 4,00,00,000 200,00

*Refer note 15 on Sub-division of equity shares

B. Other equity

Heserves and Surpluy Other comprehensive income
Particulars Securities premium Retained earnings Debenture | Remeasurement of defined
Redemption| benefit obligations routed Total
Reserve through OCI
Balance as at April 1,2023 - 139.91 - 1.40 141.31
Profit for the year - 28964 - - 28964
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 075 075
Securities premium on issue of equity shares 24000 - - = 240.00
Balance as at March 31, 2024 240.00 429.55 - 2.15 671.70
Profit for the year - 496 28 - - 496 28
Other comprehensive income, net of tax E - - 038 038
Debenture Redemption reserve created (15.00) 1500 - B
Bal as at March 31, 2025 240.00 910.83 15.00 2.53 | 1,168.36
See accompanying notes forming part of the kafunie finnai il 1-47
As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Asscciates) Ardee Engineering Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No : 0045998 Chartered Accountants (Formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limiled)
ICAT Firm Registration No : 0015955/S000168
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P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain ra Sekhar Moture Ragdeep Moturu
Partner Partner pirmian and Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No. 029098 Membership No. 2317 02010969 DIN 07587747
/@dW Disha Thudal
Krishna Kumari Moturu Disha Jindal
Executive Director and Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
DIN 10376709 Membership No. A65058
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise slated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 665 99 41322
Adjustments for:
Depieciation and amorltisalion expense 60.54 3585
Interest expense on borrowings measured at amortised cost 25493 142.37
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2.32 232
Interest income on security deposits (0.18) (0.12)
Interest income on fixed deposits (19.17) (897)
Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment (0.24) -
Net gain on financial assets designated on FVTPL (067) (046)
Liabilities no longer required written back (17.79) (8.92)
Other borrowing costs 12.16 6.49
Provision for credit impaired tiade receivables 45.55 24.07
Advance impaired written off 19.16 N
Operating profit before working capital ¢l 1,022,600 605,85
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decreasc in operating assets:
Trade receivables (845.69) (742.95)
Inventories (528.75) (236.97)
Other financial assets 87.16 (543.45)
Other assets (29.99) (156.54)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 431.63 90137
Provision 528 434
Other financial liabilities (49.85) 62.23
Other liabilities 255.64 (267.55)
Cash flows from/(used in) operations 348.03 (373.67)
Income tax paid (net of refund) (162.95) (111.45)
Net cash flow from/(used in) npernting activities A 185.08 (485.13)
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work-in-progress and capital advance) (1,157.61) (482.49)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.58 1.80
Investment in associate (0.20) (5.45)
Investment in mutual funds - (7.50)
Movement in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent (24.88) (186.73)
Interest received on fixed deposits 19.17 8.97
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities B (1,161.94) (671.40)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds fiom issuance of equity share capital including securities premium - 250.00
Share issue expenses (22.18) -
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,070.21 40351
Repayment of long term borrowings (241.98) (71.26)
Proceeds fiom short term borrowings (net) 452.90 479.72
Interest paid on borrowings (254.93) (136.67)
Other borrowing costs (12.16) (6.49)
Payment towards principal portion of lease liability (12.22) (9.47)
Interest paid on lease liabilities {2.32) (2.32)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities C 977.32 907.02
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C 0.46 (249.51)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.08 25059
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yeur (Refer Note 13) 1.54 1.08
See aceampanying notes forming part of the siandulone financial statements 1-47
As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates) Ardee Engineering Limited
ICATI Firm Registration No.: 0045998 Chartered Accountants (formerly known as Ardee Engineering Puivate Limited)

ICAL Firm Registiation No.: 001595S/S000168
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(tormerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020P1.C 141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts ate Rs. in Million, except for share and per shate data and where otherwise stated)

()

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Corporate information

Ardee Engineering Limited (formetly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited) (‘the Company’/*Ardee’) is a design, engineering and manufacturing entity formed in yeai
2008 as a partnership firm. On July 20, 2020, the Partnership firm was converted into privale limited company under (he provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Later, the
Company was converted from private limited company to public limited company, puisuant to a special 1esolution passed in (he extraordinary gencral meeling of the shareholders
of the Company held on June 5, 2024 and consequently the name of the Company was changed to Ardee Engineering Limited w.e T August 05, 2024, The registered office is
located al H No. 8-2-334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103, Aditya Court, Road No, 5, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034, Telanpana, [ndia

The Company is engaged in twnkey PEB projects, material handling and processing solutions, electrical and automation solutions, heavy structural and precision engineering
solutions. Infiastructure, lrrigation, Mining and Minerals, Ports, Power and Oil and Gas, ate the major sectors where Ardee has operated in

Summary of Material accounting policies
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act"), read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time and presentation
requitements of Division IT of Schedule Il to the Act, (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT), as applicable to the standalone financial statements

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

Basis of measurement

This standalone financial statementshas been prepated on accrual basis and under historical cost convention, except for the following items (refer to individual accounting policies
for detail):

i Certain financial instruments - Fair value through profit or loss

ii. Net defined benefit asset / (liability) - Present value of defined benefit obligations

The Company has prepared the standalone financial information on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern

Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statementsis presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company. All the amounts disclosed in the
standalone financial statements which also include the accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions except for share and per share data and where otherwise
stated, up to two decimal places as per the requirement of Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013

Use of estimates
The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with principles of Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on
the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the cairying amounts of assets or liabilities in future years

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years

In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements are disclosed in note no 3

Classification between - Current and Non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be seftled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating Cyele

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formeily known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per shate data and where olherwise slated)

2.2

2.3

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price, including

import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and 1ebates, any expenditure directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary fou it to be capable of operating in (he manner intended by management and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted fot as a sepatate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred. If significant parts of an item of PPE
have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separale items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the income statement when the asset is derecognised

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis on the Straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1 to the Companies Act,

2013
The estimated useful life, residual values and the depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis,

The useful life of assets are as follows:

Tangible assets Uscful life as per Schedule IT Useful life estimated by the management based on technical
assessment

Buildings 30 years 15 - 30 vears

Plant and machinery 15 years 3 - 15 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 vears 10 years

Computers 3 years 3 vears

Office equipments 5 vears 5 - 10 years

Vehicles 8 years 8-15 years

Based on the technical experts assessment of useful life, certain items of property plant and equipment are being depreciated over useful lives different from the prescribed useful
lives under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. Management believes that such estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset

In case of a revision of useful Tives, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price and directly
attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use. Amortisation is recognised on a Straight line method basis over their estimated useful lives so as to reflect the pattern in
which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The estimated useful life and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (ie., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised

The useful life of asset is as fallows:

Asset Useful lives

Software 5 years

This space is intentionally left blank



Ardee Engineering Limited

(formetly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except lor share and per shate data and where otherwise stated)

2.4

2.6

Impairment of non-financial asscts
The Company assesses al cach year end whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a group of non financial assets is impaired, I any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss

An impairment loss is calculaled as the difference between an assel’s carrying amount and recoverable amount. Losses are recognized in Stalement of Profit and Loss and reflected
in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects ol recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the dectease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was tecognised, then the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
eslimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset, For the purpose of impaitment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest Company of assels that generates cash in {lows ffom continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Group of asscts (the “cash-generating unit”).

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a year of

time in exchange for consideration

Company as a lessce:
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement apptoach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company 1ecognizes lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use asset at the lease commencement date (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease

payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they aie incurred to produce inventories) in the year in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
oceurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasuted if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of land and Buildings, machi nery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair

value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price — i.. the fair value of the consideration given or received, If the
Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted
to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently that difference is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the Ic»}:],gﬁ!ﬂé'ﬁm_ug hierarchy as explained above
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, excepl for share and per share data and whete olherwise stated)

2.7

2.8

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net tealisable value
i Raw materials, components and stores and spares:

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incuried in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected (o be sold at or above cost. Cosl of raw
materials, components and stotes and spates is determined on a weighted average method, Stores and spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are
accounted as inventories

ii Work-in-progress:
Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of direct malerials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal opeiating capacily. Cost is
determined on a moving weighted average basis

iii Serap:
Scrap is valued at net realizable value,
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary coutse of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the

payment is being made.

Contract with customers include pre-engineered building, material handling and engineering contracts along with erection and installation services. All the supplies and services
are considered as one petformance obligation as the Company believes underlying goods and services are single performance obligation, single commercial objective or the
consideration in one contract depends on another.

In respect of the contracts, revenue is recognised over a period of time using the input method (equivalent to percentage of completion method POCM) of accounting with contract
costs incurted determining the degree of completion of the performance obligation,
Percentage of completion is determined on the basis of proportion of the costs of shipment made and cost of erection incurred as against the total estimated cost of shipment and

etection
The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts

collected on behalf of a third party. Payment terms agreed with a customer are as per business practice, and there is no financing component involved in the transaction price.

Liquidated damages (LD) represents the expected claim which the Company may need to pay for non-fulfilment of certain commitments as per the terms of respective sales
contract, These are determined on case to case basis considering the dynamics of each contract and the factors relevant to that sale

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which such probability occurs. Due to the uncertainties attached, the revenue on account of extra claims are accounted for at the time of acceptance / settlement by the customers.

The Company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale. These assutance-type warranties are accounted for under Ind AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Interest income

Interest income on investments and loans is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate including interest on investments
classified as fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income. Interest receivable on customer dues is recognised as income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss on accrual basis provided there is no uncertainty of realisation

Contract balances

a. Contract Assets:
Revenue earned but not billed to customers against contract with customers is reflected as unbilled revenue under "Other financial assets” because the receipt of consideration is

conditional on Company’s performance under the contract (ie. transfer control of related goods or services to the customer). Upon completion of the installation and acceptance by
the customer, the amount recognised as unbilled revenue is reclassified to trade receivables,

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to the accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in note 2,12 Financial instcuments — initial recognition and
subsequent measurement

b. Trade Receivables:
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to the
accounting policies of financial assets in note 2.12 (Financial instruments ~ initial recognition and subsequent measurement)

c. Contract Liabilitics:
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services
These amounts are reflected as Advance from customers under "Other liabilities". Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract

(ie., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer)

viderabad
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2.9

Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan N
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme The Company has no obligation, other than the contiibution payable to the provident fund. The

Company recognizes contribulion payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee tenders the related service

Defined benefit Plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit (hat employees have earned in the curient and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified acluary using the ptojected unit credit method When the calculation results in a potential asset
for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in futwe
contributions (o the plan (‘the asset ceiling’) To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if
any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in OCL The Company determines the net inlerest expense/ (income) on the net defined benefit liabilily/ (asset) for the period
by applying the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting petiod on government bonds. This rate is applied on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset), both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability/(asset) during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the 1esulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain
or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The, Company 1ecognises gains and losses on the seltlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 which entitles an employee, who has rendeted at least five years of continuous
service, to gratuity payable on termination of his employment at the rate of fifieen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based on
the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned

All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, made by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method The
classification of the Company’s net obligation into current and non-curtent is as per the actuarial valation report

Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in determination of the net profit or loss for the year

Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in standalone financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences
and losses.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Provisions, contingent liabilitics and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date, The expensc relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability,. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognized because either it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed and not recognized

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
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2,12

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assel of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

Financial asscts

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, (in the case of financial assels not recorded at fair value through statement of profil and loss) transaction costs (hat are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset Transaction costs of financial assels caitied at fair value through profit or loss are expensed off in the statement of profit &
loss. Trade receivable that does not conlain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price,

Classification and subsequent measurcment:

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt insttuments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categoties into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows those cash flows 1epresent solely payments ol principal and interest are measured al amortised cost
Interest income fiom these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method: Any gain ot loss arising on derecognition and impairment losses
(if any) are recognised directly in profit or loss

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables and security deposit

Fair yalue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss

The Company has not designated any financial asset (debt instruments) at FVTOCI

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the critetia for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss
The Company has designated investments in mutual funds (debt instruments) in this category.

Derecognition:
A financial assct (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i e. removed from the Company’s
summary statements of assets and liabilities) when;
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset o1 has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

Impairment of financial assets

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that 1esult fiom default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12- month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL),

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs, Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities and equity

An instruments issued by a Company are classifted as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement:
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement:

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: Financial liabilitics are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
This category generally applies to borrowings. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due to the short maturity of these instruments

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

Offsetting financial instruments:
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to settlg gu.a net basis or realize the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable'j;g-_'ﬂ'y:{ ’r@?‘i?m'\of business and in the event of default, ul;pl\‘.cnc_v or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

PRI AN SO

i
- o A

i;“; V“/

C.-’t
a
\{((; Hyderabad.




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(Al amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

2.13

2.14

3.1

(a)

(b)

(c)

(@)

()

®

Investments in the nature of equity in Associate
Investment in associate are valued at Cosl. Dividend Income from Associates is recognized when its right to receive the dividend is established

Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per share ate calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period allributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the yeai

The weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the year adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,share split, and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shates outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year atiributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year aie adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Segment Reporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker The Board of Ditectors monitors the operating
results as a single segment considering activities of manufacturing, supply, erection and installation of pre- engineered buildings, material handling solutions and related services
as one single operating segment. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the location in which the customers are situated

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
tequite a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years

Judgements / estimates
In the process of applying the accounting policies, manageiment has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial information:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the teporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the financial year, are described below:

a, The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepated

b. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumnstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining the revenue to be recognized in case of performance obligation satisfied over a period of time; revenue recognition is done by measuring the progress towards
complete salisfaction of performance obligation,
Determining the expected losses, which are recognized in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected total contract cost as of the reporting date

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are
reviewed by the management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful lives of the
assets

Contingent liabilities

The Company uses significant judgements to assess contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when thete is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is cither not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates,
adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and the Company makes appropriate provision wherever
outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative
of customer’s actual default in the future

Defined benefit plans (Gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions

All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date, The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality table . The mortality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based
on expected future inflation rates.

Deferred tax recognition

Deferred tax asset (DTA) is recognized only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will have sufficient taxable profits in future against which such
assets can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies, recent business performance and developments.
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4 Recent accounting pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified amendments to various Indian Accounting Standards through the Companies (Indian Accounting Standaids) Amendment Rules,

2025 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2025 as under:

* Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 10: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

These amendments are introduced to clarify the requirements on determining whether a liability is current or non-cuttent and requite new disclosures for non-cutrent liabilities that
are subject fo future covenants. These amendments apply for the annual reporting periods beginning on or after Apiil |, 2025, while certain amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2026. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these amendments, which will be applied retrospectively in
accordance with Ind AS 8. These amendments may particulatly affect the classification and disclosures relating to non-cutrent borrowings subject to future covenant compliance

* Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 7: Supplier Financc Arrangements

These amendments introduce new disclosures relating to supplier finance arrangements that assist users of the financial statements to assess the effects of these artangements on an
entity’s liabilities and cash flows and on an entity's exposure to liquidity risk. The amendments apply tor the annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025

The Company is in the process of assessing whether any of its supplier related financing arrangements fall within the scope of these amendments and, if so, will provide the
required disclosures

* Amendments to Ind AS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Lack of Exchangeability)

These amendments require assessing cwrrency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable and also requires specific disclosures
viz. the nature and financial effects of the currency not being exchangeable, the spot exchange rates used, the estimation process, and the risks to which the entity is exposed
because of the currency not being exchangeable. The amendment also lays down transition requirements, while specifically stating that an entity shall not restate comparative
information in applying Lack of Exchangeability. These amendments are effective from April 1, 2025; however, these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on
the Company’s financial statements as the Company’s transactions are limited to currencies that are freely convertible and exchangeable, and management has assessed that no
significant restrictions apply to its operations.

* Amendments to Ind AS [2: International tax reform—Pillar Two model rules

The amendments to Ind AS 12 have been introduced in response to the OECD’s BEPS Pillar Two rules and include a mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the jurisdictional implementation of the Pillar Two model rules and disclosure requirements for affected entities to help users of the
financial statements better understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes arising from that legislation

These amendments have no impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company is not in scope of the Pillar Two model rules

This space is intentionally left blank
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Ardee Enginecring Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwisc stated)

6 Right of use assets and Lease liabilities

Right-of-use asscis:

Description Buildings Plant and Total
machinery
Cost as at April 1,2023 19.31 8.20 27.51
Additions 927 - 9.27
Deletions - - -
Cost as at March 31, 2024 28.58 8.20 36.78
Additions 34.34 - 3434
Deletions - - -
Cost as at March 31, 2025 62.92 8.20 71.12
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2023 5.60 1.89 7.49
Depreciation for the year 7.93 1.90 9.83
Deletions - - -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2024 13.53 3.79 17.32
Depreciation for the year 10.40 1.9 12.29
Deletions - - -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2025 23.93 5.68 29.61
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 15.05 4.41 19.46
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 38.99 2.52 41.51
Lease liabilities:
(i) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Balance at the beginning 21.78 2227
Additions during the year 33.65 898
Accrual of interest 232 232
Interest paid on lease labilities (2.32) (2.32)
Payment of lease liabilities (12.22) 9.47)
Closing balance 43.21 21.78
Less: Current lease liabilities 15.10 11.52
Non-current lease liabilities 28,11 10,26

(ii) Payments recognised as expenses:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Short-term leases and Jlow value assets (refer Note 30) 157.32 105,23

Notes:
(i) Leases where Company is a lessee

The Company has lease contracts for buildings and Industrial property which has lease term between 3 to 6 years. The Company also has lease contracts for plant and

machinery, which has lease term of 6 years,

The Company also has certain leases of equipment, machinery and commercial space with lease term up to 12 months. The Company applies the recognition

exemptions relating to short-term leases.

(ii) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis are disclosed in Note 37

This space is intentionally left blank




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Privale Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

7 Intangible assets
Description Computer Software
Cost as at April 1, 2023 0.52
Additions 1.59
Disposals -
Cost as at March 31, 2024 2.11
Additions 027
Disposals -
Cost as at March 31, 2025 2.38
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2023 0.05
Amortisation for the year 022
Disposals -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2024 0.27
Amortisation for the year 0.45
Disposals -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2025 0.72
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 1.84
1.66

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025

Note:
The Company has not revalued its intangible assets,

This space is intentionally left blank




Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per shate data and where otherwise stated)

8 Investments

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number Amount Number Amount

Non-current
Investment in Associate
In unquoted equity shares (fully paid up)
(i) Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private limited - Equity shares 90,870 5.45 90,870 545
having face value of Rs.100 each

(i} Ardee Yantrik Private limited - Equity shates having face 20,000 0.20 - -
value of Rs. 10 each*

5.65 5.45

*The Company acquired 20,000 equity shares at face value Rs 10 each amounting to Rs.0.20 Mn as subscriber to the memorandum of Ardee Yantrik Private
Limited, incorporated on November 27, 2024 representing 40.00% of the total equity share capital

Current
Inv in ted 1 funds (carried at fair value
through profit nnd loss)

HDFC Short Term Debt-G 2,75,693.13 863 2,75,693.13 7.96

8.63 7.96

Notes: s
(a) Aggregate value of unquoted investments in equity shares 5.65 545
(b) Aggregate value of unquoted investments in mutual funds 8.63 7.96
(c) Change in fair value of the investments in mutual funds during the year 0.67 0.46

(d) Refer Note 36 for fair value measurements and Note 37 for information about the Company's exposure to financial risks.
(e) Refer Note 17.1 for details on investments subject to charge on secured borrowings.

9 Other financial assets (Unsecured, considered good)

As at March As at March

31, 2025 31,2024
Non-current
Security deposits 1.44 097
Deposits with maturity more than 12 months
Margin money deposits with banks* 123.75 2331
125.19 24.28
Current
Security deposits 3098 8.37
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with bank 6.10 10.73
Unbilled revenue 898.78 1,005.74
Other receivables 5.90 4.37
941,76 1,029.21

* Margin money deposits held against issuance of bank guarantees and letter of credits provided in fayour of customers and suppliers.

10 Other assets

As at March As at March

31, 2025 31,2024
Non-current
Capital Advance 2.07 -
2.07 -
Current
Advances recoverable in kind or for value to be received 127.54 100.25
Prepaid expenses - 973 2.46
Balance with government authorities 133.68 157.41
Share issue expenses* 65.00 -
335.95 260,12

*During the year ended Murch 31, 2025, the Company incurred expenses in cannection with the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) of equity shares of the
Company by way of fresh issue and an offer for sale by the existing shareholders. In relation to the PO expenses incurred till date, except for listing fees which
shall be solely borne by the Company, all other expenses will be shared between the Company and the Selling Shareholders on a pro-rata basis, in proportion to the
equity shates issued and allotted by the Company in the fiesh issue and the offered shaies sold by the selling shareholders in the offer for sale,

11 Inventories
As at March As at March
31,2025 31, 2024
All inventories excep for scrap are valued at the lower of cosi or nel realisable value and scrap is valued at net realisable value

Raw material* 1,043.19

Work-in-progress 90.38

Store and spares 28,40

50.31

1,212.28




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020P[.C141953)
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(Allamounts aie Rs. in Million, except for share and per shate dala and wheie othenwise slated)

Trade receivables

As at March As at March 31,
31, 2025 2024
Non-Current
Unsecured
- Considered good 142 71 80.65
142.71 80.65
Current
Unsecured
- Considered good 2,216.06 1,477.98
- Credit impaired 182.33 141.15
2,398.39 1,619.13
Less: Allowance for ciedit impaited trade receivables (refer note g helow) (182.33) (141.15)
2,216.06 1,477.98

Notes:

(a) Amounts due from 1elated parties out of the above trade receivables (refer note 35)

(b) Tiade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 0 to 90 days fiom date of invoicing other than retention money which is due upon expiry of defect
liability period. The Company does not hold any collateral security.
(c) Trade receivables includes retention money aggregating to Rs. 238,57 Mn (March 31, 2024: Rs. 90.88 Mn).
(d) Refer Note 37 for information about the Company exposure to financial risks, and details of impairment losses for trade receivables and fair values
(e) Refer Note 17.1 for details on trade receivables subject to charge on secured borrowings

(f) No Trade receivables are due from directors or officets of the company

(g) Ageing of Trade receivables
As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Non-current  Current Outstanding for following periods from due date of Reccipts
but not Due but not Less than 6 months-1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
Due 6 Months year years years 3 years

Undisputed trade receivables

- considered good 142.71 1,538.68 267.14 367.00 4232 0.92 - 2,358.77

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

— credit impaired - - 1.96 29.31 67.26 2877 55.03 182.33
Disputed trade receivables

— considered good - - - - - - -

— which have significant increase in credit tisk - - - - - - - -

— credit impaired _ - - - . " . F
Subtotal 142.71 1,538.68 269.10 396.31 109.58 29.69 55.03 2,541.10
Less: Allowance for credit impaired trade receivaliles - E (1.96) (2931) (67.26) (28.77) (55.03) (182.33)
Total 142,71 1,538.68 267.14 367.00 42.32 0.92 - 2.358.77
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Non-current  Current (0] ling for following periods from due date of Receipts

but not Due but not Less than 6 months-1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
Due 6 Months year years years 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables

— considered good 80,65 965.42 226.86 73.68 159.22 52,80 - 1,558.63

—which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

— credit impaired - - - - - 141,15 - 141.15
Disputed trade receivables

— considered good = B - - - - - -

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

— credit impaired - E = - - - = =
Subtotal 80.65 965.42 226.86 73.68 159.22 193.95 - 1,699,78
Less: Allowance for credit impaired trade receivables - - - - - (141.15) - (141.15)
Total 80,65 965.42 226.86 73.68 159.22 52.80 - 1,558.63
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Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Cogineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(Ali amounts are Rs. in Million, except for shaie and per shaie data and where otherwise stated)

(h) Expected credit loss (ECL)

The Company’s exposure Lo credit 1isk is influenced mainly by the individual charactetistics of each customer. Credit 1isk is managed thiough credit approvals, establishing ciedit
limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company giants ciedit in the normal couise of business. Befote accepting any new customer, the
Company assesses the potential customer's credit quality

The movement in the allowance for credit loss:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 141,15 149,30

Less: Written off duing the year (4.37) (3221)
Add: Provision created during the year 45,55 24.06
Closing balance 182.33 141.15

(i) Of the trade receivables balance of Rs. 1,785.45 Mn for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs 896.12 Mn) is due fiom Company's lacgest customers individually
repiesenting more than 5% of total trade receivables balance.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024
Cash on hand 0.12 0.31
Balances with banks:
In cutrent accounts 142 0.77
1.54 1.08

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024

Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months
Margin money deposits with banks* 166.71 24227
166.71 242.27

* Margin money deposits held against issuance of bank guarantces and letter of ciedits provided in favour of customers and suppliers.
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where alhenwise staled)

15

Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2024

7.,00,00, 000 equity shares of Rs S each* (March 31, 2024: 3.50.00.000 equily shares of Rs 10 each) 350 00 35000
4 00 00, 000 cqultv shares of Rs S each* (March 31, 2024: 2.00.00,000 equily shares of Rs. 10 each) 20000 200 00
200.00 200.00

(1) Shareholders vide the Extra-ordinary general meeling dated March 30, 2024 have approved increase in Authorised Equily Share Capital of the Company from Rs 200 00 Mn divided
into 20,000,000 Equily shares of Rs 10 each to Rs. 350.00 Mn divided inlo 3,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each by addition of 1,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, ranking pari-
passu with existing shares of the Company

(i) Sub-division of equity shares™

Pursuant to resolution passed by the Board of Directors on January 28, 2025 and resolution passed by the Shareholders on January 29, 2025, the company has made Sub-division of |
(one) equity share of nominal/face value of Rs. 10 into 2 (two) equily shares of nominal/face value of Rs. 5 each, fully paid-up we.f, January 31, 2025, Accordingly, the authorised
share capital of our Company was sub-divided fiom 3,50,00,000 equity shares of face value of T10 each to 7,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs 5 each

Noles:
i) Reconciliation of Authorised equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,50,00,000 350.00 2,00,00,000 20000
Add: Increase in Authorised Share Capital (Refer note below) - - 1,50,00,000 150 00
Add: Sub-division of equity shares* 3,50,00,000 -
Balance at the end of the year 7,00,00,000 350.00 3.50.00,000 350.00
Note:

*Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

ii) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars [For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Outstanding al the beginning of the year 2,00,00,000 200 00 1,90,00,000 190.00
Add: Issuc during the year (Refer note below) - - 10,00,000 10.00
Add; Sub-division of equity shares* 2.00,00,000
Qutstanding at the end of the vear 4,00,00,000 200.00 2,00,00,000 200.00
Note:

During FY 2023-24 vide board resolution dated March 28, 2024, the Company has issued 10,00,000 Equity shares with a face value of Rs 10 each at issue price of Rs. 250 per equity
share with premium of Rs. 240 per share

*Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 5 per share (post split- Refer note above for details) . Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject (o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

iv) Shares held by sharcholders holding more than 5% shares of the aggregate shares of the Company:

Name of shareholder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares# % holding  Nu. ol shures % holding
Mr Chandra Sekhar Moturu* 3,59,99,900 90 00% 1,79,99,950 90.00%
Mr. Ragdeep Moturn 40,00,000 10 00% 20,00,000 10 00%

* % holding as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 - 89.9998% are rounded off to 90 00%
#Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

v) Shareholding of promoters

Name of promoter As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 % change
No. of shares** % holding  No. of shares % holding during the
year
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu* 3,59,99,900 90.00% 1,79,99,950 90.00% -
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 40,00,000 10.00%  20,00,000 10.00% -
Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu# 20 0.00% - - 100 00%
Mr. Arundeep Moturis# 20 000% - - 100 00%

* % holding as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 - 89 9998% are rounded off to 90.00%

# Shares are transferred during FY 2023-24 vide resolution March 28, 2024 to the respective shareholders as indicate above, however the shareholders are categorised in the capacity of
promoters vide board resolution dated September 17, 2024,

Refer note 17.1 for the details of promoters shares pledged

**Refer nole above on Sub-division of equity shares

Name of promoter As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 % change
during the
No. of shares % holding No of shares % holding year

1,79,99,950 90.00% 1,71,00,000 90.00% 0.00%
20,00,000 10.00% 16,000,000} 100, (0% -




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limiled)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share dala and where otherwise stated)

16 Other equity

As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024

Reserves and surplus

Securities premium [Refer Note (i) below] 240.00 240.00
Retained eamings [Refer Note (ii} below] 910.83 429.55
15.00 -

Debenture redemption reserve [Refer Note (iii) below]
Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan [Refior Note (iv) below] 253 2.15
Total other equity 1,168.36 671.70
Notes:
Movement in reserves and surplus For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 240.00 -
Add: Issue of equity shares (refer note 15) - 240.00
Balance at the end of the vear 240,00 240.00
(i) Retained earnings

429.55 13991

Balance at the beginning ol the year
Less: Transfer to Debenture redemption reserve (15.00) -

Add: Net profit for the year 496.28 289.64

Balance at the end of the vear 910.83 429.55

(iii) Debenture redemption reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year - -

Add: Transfer from retained earnings 15.00 -

Balance at the end of the year 15.00 -

(iv) Other comprehensive income (OCI)

R rement of defined benefit obligations (liability net of tax)

Balance at the beginning of the yeat 2.15 1.40

Add : Changes during the year 0.38 0.75
2,53 2.15

Balance at the end of the vear

Nature of reserves:

(a) Securities premium

Securities premium represents the amount received in excess of the face value of the equity shares. The utilisation of the securities premium reserve is governed by the section 52
of the Act

(b) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the cumulative undistributed profits of the Company and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act

(¢) Debenture Redemption Reserve
Represents the amount transferred to separate reserve on account of issue of Redeemable non-convertible debentures and should be utilised in accordance with the provisions of

the Act,

(d) Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan include re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engincering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise staled)

17 Borrowings

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Non current (at amortised cost)

Secured

a. Term loans
(1) From banks 320.87 189.73
(ii) From non-banking financial companies 364.54 28.19

b. Vehicle and equipment loans
(i) From banks 133.51 101.53
(i1) From non-banking finaucial companies 25.69 32.96

¢. Business loan
From banks 18.71 18.69

d. Redeemable non-convertible debentures

From others 147.37 -
Unsecured
a. Term loans

(i) From non-banking financial companies 261.12 15.22

b. Working Capital - Business loans
(i) From banks ~ 6.55
(ii) From non-banking financial companies 45.67 36.89

¢. Loan from others

(i) Inter-corporate loan - 59.49
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (413.98) (117.54)
Total non current borrowings 903.50 371.71

Current (at amortised cost)

Secured

a. Loans repayable on demand from banks
(i) Working capital demand loans 205.57 213.31
(ii) Cash credit facilities 469.20 453.40

b. Working capital facility - Channel finance

(i) From non-banking financial companies 118.35 106.89
Unsecured
a. Working capital facility - Channel finance
(1) From non-banking financial companies 138.26 155.15
(ii) Through TReDs platform 868.83 431.19

b. Repayable on demand

(i) From related parties 11.82 1.40
(ii) From others 2.21 -
Add: Current maturities of long-term borrowings 413.98 117.54
Total current borrowings 2,228.22 1,478.88

Refer Note 36 for fair value measurements and Note 37 for information about the Company’s exposure to financial risks




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

17.1

Summary of borrowing terms:
The repayment terms and maturity terms of borrowings as stated below

Non currvent borrowings

Particulars Rate of interest Numbier of equal Maturity year As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(%) Instalments
Secuved
a. Term loans
(i) From banks (Refer Note | below)
HDFC Bank Limited 9.00% 21 1o 69 months January 2025 to April 2027 2624 43.77
1CICI Bank Limited 10 00% 84-| 14 months October 2031 to October 2033 294 63 145.96
(ii) From banking M ial
(Refer Note 2 below)
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 11 00% 60 months August 2028 2138 2819
Aditya Birla Capital Limited 12 50% 72 months February 2031 343 16 .
(i) From banks
HDFC Bank Limited 855% to 1025% 12 to 39 months November 2023 to February 2028 62 05 67.57
Yes Bank Limited 9.09% 1o 11 12% 36 fo 46 months. May 2025 to February 2028 3424 3396
Axis Bank Limited 10.10% 35 months October 2027 to November 2027 3722 -
(it) From banking fi ial
Sundaram Finance Limited 1125%1t0 1248% 23 to 60 months December 2026 to July 2028 2569 2557
Toyota Financial Services Private 6 9%% 36 months December 2026 - 739
Yes Bank Limited 11.00% 37 months January 2028 1871 18.69
d. Redeemnble non-convertible debentures {Refer Note 10 below
RevX Capital 15.25% 12 months and 1 day March 2026 14737
Unsecured
i Term louns from NOFC
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 1125%to 11.80% 36 months May 2026 to July 2026 855 1522
IKF Finance Limited {Refer Note 2 below) 17 00% 36 months January 2028 25257 -
(i) From banks
Axis Bank Limited 16.00% 36 months February 2025 151
HDFC Bank Limited 15 00% 36 months March 2025 288
Unity Small finance Bank limited 17 50% 36 months March 2025 196
IDFC First Bank (Capital First Limited) ~ 9.25% 10 17 50% 36 to 48 months December 2022 to August 2024 020
(i) From banking (i inl
Oxyzo financial services Private Limiled 14 50% 18 months October 2023 to March 2026 4567 3266
Other NBFCs 11.25% to 19.00% 18 to 48 months December 2021 to March 2025 . 423
€ Loan fvom others: (Refer note § below)
Inter-corporate loan*(EIR- 9.5%) 600% * 36 months April 2025 to March 2027 59 49
(413,98) (117.54)
903.50 371.71
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standal Fi ial S

(All amounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share dala and where otherwise stated)

Current boriswings
Particulars As al March 31,2025  As at March 31, 2024

Secured
A. Loans repayable on demand from banks
(i) Working Capital Demand Loan (WCDL) (Refer Note | below)

WCDL from HDFC Bank Limited 20557 2133]
(i) Cash Credit (Refer Note 1 and 4 below)

HDFC Bank Limited 99 39 116 34

[CICI Bank Limited 5658 wn

State Bank of India 31323 29929

I Working capital - Channel Finanee {Refer Note S below

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 11835 106 89
Unsecured
a. Working capital - Channel Finance- (Refer Note 6 below)
(i) From banking fi ial i
Aditya Birla Capital Limiled 2833 54 97
Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited 109 93 10018
(ii) Through TreDs platform
Receivables Exchange of India Limited 65398 29336
A TREDS Limited 21485 13783

b. Repayable on demand

From related parties- (Refer note7 below) 11.82 1.40

From others - (Refer note 8 below) 221 +
Add: Current maturities of lang-term butriwings 413.98 11754
Total 2,228.22 1,478.88
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Ardee Engineering Limited
(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standal. Fi ial S t
(All amounts are Rs_in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise staled)
Notes:

L. Term Loan/Working Capital Demand Loan/Cash Credit

(i) Term LoawWaorking Capital Demand Loaw/Cash Credit from HDFC Bank Limited
(a) Primary Security: Current Assets (Stock, Book Debtors), Plant & Machinery, Fixed deposit for Lelter of credit, Bank guarantee, personal guarantee from directors and relative of
directors
(b) Collateral Security: One Immovable property owned by relative of director and additiona! three immovable properties given as co-collateral along with ICICI Bank Limited
owned by Directors of the Company
(c) Working capital demand loan and cash credit carry interest rate of 9.35% p a each and repayable on demand and the tenure ranging uplo 365 days
(d) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors and relatives of directors of the company

(ii) Term Loan/Cash Credit from ICICI Bank Limited
(a) Exclusive charge on movable fixed assets, Company's immovable property localed at Visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh, India and first paripassu on current assets and
(b) Collateral Security: Three immovable properties given as co-collateral along with HDFC Bank Limited owned by Directors of the Company
(c) Cash credit facility carry interest at repo rate 6.50% plus spread of 3 25% p a and repayable on demand and the lenure ranging uplo 365 days
(d) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors and relatives of directors of the company

2, Term loan from NBFC- (Secured)
(i) Tata Capital loan is secured under the mortgage of Industrial property siluated at IDA Patancheru, Sangareddy District, Telangana
(ii) Aditya Birla Capital Finance Limited Loan
(a) Primary Security: Mortagage of Land and building to be constructed on the land located in Seetharampur, Hyderabad
Exclusive charge created by way of hypothecation on moveable fixed assets of the company Current Assels hypotheciated as second pari passu charge
(b) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company
(¢) Equity Shares of promoler Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu are pledged for the loan facility

Unsecured Term loan from NBFC

(iii) JKF Finance Limited: Loan is secured under the collateral of the following;
(a) Three properties owned by relative of directors of the company

{b) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

3. Vehicle and Equipment loan from Bank and NBI'C (Secured):
Security provided for the vehicle and equipment loans are the underlying assets for which loan has been obtained First and exclusive charge through hypothecation on the assets purchased

from loan proceeds

4. Credit facility from SBI Bank (Secured)
(i) First paripassu charge on stock and receivables
(ii) Collateral security on equitable mortgage of industrial land with sheds constructed (hereon at Pashamylaram, Sangareddy
(iii) Interest rate of 10,14% p a and repayable on demad and the lenure ranging upto 365 days
(iv) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company.

5. Working Capital/Channel Finance (Secured):

(1) Primary charge on stocks and receivables funded out of Tata Capital Financial Services Limited Collateral - Security on liquid funds i.e. mutual funds
(ii) Tata Capital loan is secured under the mortgage of Industrial property situaled at IDA Patancheru, Sangareddy District, Telangana

(iii) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

6. Facility through TreDs platform / other NBFCs:
Interest ranging from 9 50% pato 14 50% p a, with a credit period ranging from 45 to 120 days

7. Loan from related parties
Interest free loan from related parties are repayable on demand

8. Inter Corporate loan
Inter Corporate loan are obtained at the rate of interest of 6 00% per annum for a period extending upto 3 years and repayable along with inlerest. Interest is repayable as and when

demanded by the lender

9. Nou-fund facilitics from HDFC Bank Limited/IC1CI Bank Limited/State Bank of India
(i) The tenure of bank guaraniees typically ranges from 3 months to 36 months, while the maximum tenor for letter of credit upto 180 days
(ii) Commissions on bank typically ranges from 0.75% p a to 2 75% p a, while commissions for letters of credit ranges from 0 70% p a to 1 40% p.a

10. Non convertible redeemable deben(ures
The tenure of the Debenture are 12 months and 1 days from the date of disbursement i e , March 01, 2026 and carry fixed rate of interest al 15.25% pa

The debentures are secured as follows:

(i) Total Security 1 10- times debentures Subscription Amount,

(ii) Secondary ranking, charge on all existing and future cashflows of the issuer, existing and future fixed and current assels, other assets, including but not limited
to inventory (if any), receivables, rental deposits, i ible assets including brand and intell | property, uncalled share capital etc of the company.

(iii) Personal gi provided by di of the pany. '

11, Business loan- Equipment refinance
Security provided for the business loans obtained through refinance of equipments are the underlying assets for which loan has been obtained First and exclusive

charge through hypothecation on the assets

12 The Company has not defaulted on working capital loan or any other loan payables,

13, Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such borrowings were taken

14. Detnils of borrdwings punrantecd by Directors and others:

As at March 31, 2025 As at Murch 31, 2024

Particulars
Directors 1,312.94 721.08
Directors and Relative of Directors GE244 440 8]
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Ardee Enginecring Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

17.2  Reconciliation of movements of liabilitics to cash flows arising from financing activitics

Borrowings Lease liabilities

Particulars

Non-current Current Non-current Current Total
As at March 31, 2023 154.81 878.11 12.95 9.32 1,055.19
Cash flows:
Principal paid on lease liabilities - - - 947 (9.47)
Interest paid on lease liabilities - - - (2.32) (2.32)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 403.51 - - - 403.51
Repayment of long term borrowings (71.26) - - (71.26)
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net - 479.72 - - 479.72
Interest paid on borrowings (31.21) (105 45) “ (136.66)
Non-cash flows:
Movement from non-current to current (117.54) 117.54 (11.67) 11.67 -
New leases - - 8.98 = 8.98
Interest expense during the year 33.40 108.96 - 2.32 144.68
As at March 31, 2024 37171 1,478.88 10.26 11.52 1,872.37
Cash flows:
Principal paid on lease liabilities - - - (12.22) (12.22)
Interest paid on lease liabilities - - - (2.32) (2.32)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,070.21 - - - 1,070.21
Repayment of long term borrowings (124.44) (117.54) - - (241.98)
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net - 452.90 - - 452.90
Interest paid on borrowings (78.78) (176.15) - - (254.93)
Non-cash flows:
Movement from non-current to current (413.98) 41398 (15.80) 15.80 -
New leases - - 33.65 . 33.65
Interest expense during the year 78.78 176.15 - 232 257.25
As at March 31, 2025 903.50 2,228.22 28.11 15.10 3,174.93
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Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engincering Private Limited)

(CIN U29100TG2020PLL141953)

Notes forming part of Standal Financial Stat l

(All'amounts are Rs_in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where olherwise slated)

18 Trinde payaliles

As at March 31, 2025

As al March 31,

2024
Trade payables
- Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises (MSME}* 25824 1,028 37
- Total outstanding dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,896 83 670.00
Total trade pavables 2.155,07 1.698.37
Notes:
Amounts due to related parlies out of the above trade payable (refer nole 35)
Refer Note 37 for information about the Conipany’s exposure (o financial risks
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 0 to 90 days
*Includes Interest on delayed payment to MSMEs amounting 1o Rs. 1.03 Mn for the FY 2024-25 (FY 2023-24: NIL)
18.1 Trade payables ageing schedule
Murel 31, 2025
Particulars Payables Not Due Outstanding for fulluwing peviods from due date of Payment
Less than 1 yenr 1-2 yenrs 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) MSME 20077 57.44 003 258 24
(ii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iii) Others 1,330.36 528,52 28 65 845 0.85 1,896 83
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - = 5 -
Total 1,531.13 585.96 28.68 8.45 0.85 2,155.07
March 31, 2024
Particulirs Piyables Not Due Ouistanding for full inds from due dote of Payment
Less than | year 1-2 years 3 Muore thun 3 yeurs Total
(i) MSME 976.46 519 B = 1,028 37
(ii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iii} Others 494,25 1213 3949 2336 077 670 00
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 1.470.71 164.04 39.49 23.36 0.77 1,698.37

18.2 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006: The following are amounts due to micro and small enterprises as defined in the ‘Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006' has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company The disclosures

is as follows
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,
2024
(1) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of year* 25721 1,028 37
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of year 103 -
(iti) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year - -
(iv) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than Section 16) - -
(v) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) - -
(vi) Interest due and payable to supptiers under MSMED Act, for payments already made - =
103 -

(vit) Interest acerved and remmnimg unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act (ii}+{vi)

* includes payables not due
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Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Privale Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalonc Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

19 Other financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024

Current

Employee dues (refer Note 35) 2743 21.56

Retention money 004 56.42

Payables on purchase of property. plant and equipment 0.66 =
28.13 77.98

20 Other current liabilities

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024

Statutory dues payable 13.66 20.76

Advance from customers 320.02 59.14

Liability towards Corporate social responsibility (refer Note 32) 1.86 -
335.54 79.90

21 Provisions

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Non-current
Employee benefit obligation (refer Note 33)

Provision for gratuity 17.30 13.03
17.30 13.03
Current
Employee benefit obligation (refer Note 33)
Provision for gratuity 241 1.91
2.41 1.91
22 Income tax (assets) / liabilities, net
As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Provision for taxes 179.81 108.64
Less: Advance tax / TDS (net of refund) (158,11) (103.67)
21.70 4.97

Refer Note 31 for tax expense details.
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formetly known as Ardee Engincering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC 141953)

Notes forming part of Standal Financial S t:

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

23

23.1

23.2

24

25

26

Revenue from operations For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from contract with customers 7,767.20 6,205.07
Other operating revenue
Scrap sale 2183 4.83
7,789.03 6,209.90

Disaggregated revenue information
In the following table, revenue fiom contracts with customers is disaggtegated by primary geographical market, major 1evenue stieams
recognition

and timing of tevenue

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Primary geographical market
In India 7,789.03 6,209,90
Outside India - -
7.789.03 6.209.90
Major revenue streams
Pre-engineered building 3,948.16 3,111.75
Material handling systems 2,414,717 1,221.21
Engineering Services 1,404.27 1,872.11
Other 21.83 4.83
7,789,03 6,209,90)
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 21.83 4.83
Over time 7.767.20 6.,205.07
7.789.03 6,209.90

Information about major customers (from external customers)

For the year ended March 31, 2025 the Company has derived revenue from 3 customers totalling to Rs. 3,822.88 Mn (For the year ended March 31, 2024- 3

customers totalling to Rs. 3,370.57 Mn) contributing individually 10% or more of the total revenue

Contract balances As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables (refer Note 12) 2,358.77 1,558.63
Contract assets (refer Note 9) 898.78 1,005.74
Contract liabilities (refer Note 20) 320.02 59.14
Other income For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income earned on financial assets
- Bank deposits 19.17 897
- Other interest income 0.18 0.12
Net gain on financial assets designated on FVTPL 0.67 0.46
Liabilities no longer required written back 17.79 8.92
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.24 -
Miscellaneous income 0.06 -
38.11 18.47
Cost of materials consumed For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year 329.21 102.87
Add: Purchases 5,600,39 4,306 82
Less: Inventory at the end ol the vear (1,043.19) [329.21)
4.886.41 4.080.48
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 330.45 335.52
Scrap 1.92 177
Inventories at the ending of the year
Work-in-progress (90.38) (330.45)
Serap (50.31)

Net decrease/ (inerease) == o 191,68
0 ey




Ardee Engineering Limited
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(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standal Financial Stat t:
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27

28

29

30

30.1

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus 309.60 232.56
Contribution Lo provident and other funds (tefer Note 33) 16.06 12.65
Gratuity (refer Note 33) 7.12 527
Staff welfare expenses 1950 22.08

352.28 272.56

Finance costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest expense on

Bomowings measured at amortised cost 25493 144,13
Lease liabilities 232 232
Income tax 2.55 3.07
Other borrowing costs 12.16 6.49
271,96 156,01

Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (1efer Note 5) 47.80 25,80
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (1efer Note 6) 12.29 9.83
Amortisation of intanpible assets (refer Note 7) 045 022
60.54 35.85

Other expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Job work, installation and erection charges 558,62 54691
Labour charges 269.67 295.84
Freight charges 108.76 120.16
Rent 15732 105.23
Loading and unloading Charges 2.83 4,03
Material testing charges 10.83 217
Sand blasting charges 9.36 11.27
Site civil works 45.27 29.27
Security charges 11.39 7,18
Stores and spares consumption 1.94 508
Power and fuel 66.06 2493
Transportation charges 532 6.70
Repair and maintenance 20.80 19.75
Legal and professional charges 7.80 870
Travelling and conveyance expenses 8.93 7.24
Bank charges 1.37 552
Auditor's remuneration (Refer below) 3.85 385
Rates and taxes 16.75 1092
Expenditure for corporate social responsibility (Refer note 32) 4.56 2,18
Provision for credit impaired trade receivables 4555 24,07
Advances impaired written off 19.16 -
Miscellaneous expenses 22,14 24,33
1,398.28 1,265.33
Auditor's remuneration For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory audit 275 275
Tax audit 0.10 0.10
Other services* 13.74 1.00
16.59 3.85

Note: Amount given above excluding Goods and Setvice tax.

* for the year ended March 31, 2025 included in Share issue expenses receivable under note 10

This space is intentionally left blank




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engincering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC 141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per shaic data and where olhetwise stated)

31 Fax expense
(A) Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss:

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Current tax:

Cunent tax for the year 179.68 101,20
Adjustment of income tax telating to ealier years (net) - 16.12
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax for the yeai (9.97) 6,26
Income tax expense recognised in the of profit or loss 169.71 123.58
(B) Income tax expense charged to other cinnprehensive income (OCI):
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income tax impact on re-measurement of defined benefit plans (0.13) (0.25)
Income tax charged to OCI (0.13) (0.25)
() Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax 665,99 413.22
Tax rate applicable to the Company 25.17% 2517%
Estimated tax expense on profit 167.62 104,00
Adjustment of income tax relating to earlier yeats (net) - 16.12
Tax effect of expenditure disallowed under income tax 328 3.08
Others (1.19) 0.38
Income tax expense 169.71 123.58
D) Movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities from Mareh 31, 2024 to March 31, 2025:
Particulars As at  Credit/ (charge) in  Credit/ (charge) in As at
March 31, 2024 the Statement of oCl1 March 31, 2025
Profit and Loss
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (10.41) (6.18) - (16.59)
Right-of-use assets (4.90) (5.55) - (10.45)
Provision for credit impaired trade receivables 35.52 10.37 - 4589
Provision for employee benefits 3.76 1.20 - 4.96
Lease liabilities 5.48 553 (0.13) 10,88
Others (0.56) 4.60 - 4.04
Deferred tax assets (net) 28.89 9.97 {0.13) 38.73
Movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities from March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2024:
As at

Particulars As at  Credit/ (charge) in  Credit/ (charge) in

April 1, 2023 the Statement of ocCl March 31, 2024
Profit and Loss

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (4 84) (5.58) - (10.41)
Right-of-use assets (5.04) 0.14 - (4.90)
Provision for credit inpaired trade receivables 37.58 (2.06) - 35.52
Provision for employee benefits 292 1.09 (0.25) 3,76
Lease liabilities 5,60 (0,12) - 5.48
Others (0.81) 025 - (0.56)
Deferred tax assets (net) 35.41 (6.26) (0.25) 28.89
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32

As per Section 135 of the Companics Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicability thieshold, needs to spend al least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately

preceding thiee financial yeats on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The focus meas of' Company's CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition,
promoting education, measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups and PM relief fund. The CSR activities of the Company ate in
line with the specified in Schedute VII of the Companies Act, 2013,

Particulars As at March 31, 2025|  As at March 31, 2024
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 4.56 218
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset
-In cash - -
-Yet to be paid in cash - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above
-In cash 270 231
-Yet to be paid in cash 1.86 -
(c) Details of spent/unspent obligations
(i) Contribution to chatitable trust or PM relief fund 2.70 281
(ii) Unspent amount in relation to;
-Ongoing project 1.51 -
-Other than ongoing project 0.35 -

For the FY 2024-25
In case of Scction 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ongoing projeet)

Amount of shortfall as at April 01, 2024

With Company

In separate CSR unspent account

Amount required to be
spent during the year

Amount spent during the year

Amount of shortfall as
at March 31, 2025

Froin Company’s bank
account

from separate CSR
unspent account

With Company*

1.51

1.51

*The Company has deposited the above shortfall of CSR expenditute amounting to Rs. 1.51 Mn to a separate account called "Unspent CSR account" dated April 29, 2025

to be spent as per the p

rovisions of the Act

In case of Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Other than ongoing project)

Opening balance as | Amount deposited In specified | Amount required to be | Amount spent during the Closing balance as at Remarks
at April 01, 2024 fund of schedule VIT withing 6 spent during the year year March 31, 2025
= - 3.05 2.70 0.35 | The Closing balance as
at  Maich 31, 2025
amounting to Rs, 0,35 is
deposited in PM CARES
Fund on Aupust 11. 2025,
For the FY 2023-24
Details of ongoing and other than ongoing project
In ense of Section 135(5) of the ies Act, 2013 (Ongoing project)
Amount of shortfall as at April 01, 2023 Amount required to be Amount spent during the year Amount of shortfall as
spent during the year at March 31, 2024
With Company |In separate CSR unspent account From Company’s bank from separate CSR With Company
account unspent aceount
In case of Seetion 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Other than ongoing project)
Opening balance as | Amount deposited In specified | Amount required to be | Amount spent during the Closing balance as at Remarks
at April 01, 2023 fund of schedule V11 withing 6 spent during the year year March 31, 2024
months
0.13 0.13 2.18 2.18 -

N

R

/)
N 2red ARC 2
———
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33
3.1

33.2

(b)

(0

@)

(e)

Employee benefit obligations

Post retirement benefit - Defined contribution

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and
employee state insurance which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The Company has recognised as an expense aggregating lor the year ending March 31,2025: Rs 16.06
Mn; (March 31, 2024: Rs 12.65 Mn) in respect of the defined contribution plans

Post-cmployment benefit - Defined benefit
Gratuity (unfunded)

Particulars Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity plan
Non-current Current Total
As at March 31, 2025 17.30 2.41 19.71

As at March 31, 2024 13.03 1.91 14.94
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (Gratuity plan). The Gratuity plan s a final salary plan for India employees, which requires contributions
to be made to a separately administered fund, The Gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, Under this Act, employee who has completed
five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The plan
was unfunded

The plans are exposed to a number of risks, including:

- Interest rate risk: decreases/increases in the Discount rate used will Increase/decrease the defined benefit obligation

- Attrition risk: Changes in the estimation of mortality rates of Current and former employees

- Salary risk: increases in future salaries Increase the gross defined benefit obligation.

Gratuity cost for the year ended March 31, 2025- Rs. 7.12 Mn (March 31, 2024- Rs. 5.27 Mn) has been included in Note 27 under employee benefits expense. The

Company's gratuity plan is unfunded.

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit i.e. Gratutity plans are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 6.11 4.44
Interest cost 1.01 0.83
Components of defined benfit costs recognised in statement of profit and loss 7.12 527
Remecasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions (2.29) 0.53
Changes in financial assumptions 335 0.40
Experience adjustments (1.57) (1.93)
Components of defined benfit costs recognised in other comprehensice income (0.51) (1.00)
Balance as at the end of the year 6.61 4.27
Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance as at the beginning of the year 14.94 11.60
Current service cost 6.11 4,44
Interest cost 1,01 0.83
Included in profit and loss (refer note 27) 7.12 5.27
Remeasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions (2.29) 0.53
Changes in financial assumptions 335 0.40
Experience adjustments (1.57) (1.93)
Included in OCI (0.51) (1.00)
Benefits paid (1.83) (0.93)
Other movements (1.83) (0.93)
Balance as at the end of the year 19.71 14.94

Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the present value of the defined benefit obligations include:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 7.02% 7.24%
Future salary growth 10.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate 10.00% 6,00%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Mortality rates
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Maturity analysis
The expected malturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity obligations are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within 1 year 2.47 1.96
2 to 5 years 5.52 3.51
6 to 10 years 8.76 608
> 10 years 26.93 27.28
Total 43.68 38.83

Sensitivity analysis

The impact to the value of the defined benefit obligation of a reasonably possible change to one actuarial assumption, holding all other assumption constant, is
presented in the table below. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
balance sheet

Defined benefit nhligation

Actuarial assumptions Discount rate Future salary growth
Reasonably possible change (+1%) (- 1%) (+1%) (-1%)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
As at March 31, 2025 1811 21.58 2153 18.08
As at March 31, 2024 13.55 16 .57 16.56 13.52
Actuarial assumptions Attrition rate Future mortality rates
Reasonably possible change (+1%) (- 1%) (+1%) (-1%)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
As at March 31, 2025 19.27 20.19 19.70 19.72
As at March 31, 2024 14.75 1513 14.93 14.93

LEarnings per share
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per equity share computations:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit after tax 49628 289.64
Weighted average number of equity shares 4,00,00,000 3,80,21,918
Face value per share (Rs.) 5.00 5.00
Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share 12.41 7.62
Notes:

1. Pursuant to sub-division of equity shares [Refer note 15 for details] the Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share presented are calculated reflecting such
changes in the number of shares after considering the effect of sub-divison on the outstanding numbers of equity shares for the current and previous years.

2. No potential equity shares are outstanding as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 and there are no items giving rise to dilutive equity shares. Hence basic
EPS is considered as diluted EPS
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35 Related party transactions

Names of related partics and description of relationship as identified by the Company:
A Nature of Relationship Name of the Party
i) Associate Ardee Yantrik Private Limited (w e { Mavember 27, 2024)
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited (w.e.f June 15, 2023)

ii} Ditectors/ Key Managerial Personnel Chandra Sekhar Moturu, Chainman and Managing Director
Ragdeep Moturu, Whole-time Directot
Sundararama Sarma Goirepati, Executive Director
Arnundeep Moturu, Executive Director (Appointed w.e.f. August 25, 2024)
Krishna Kumari Moturu, Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f.
August 25, 2024)
Ravikanth Mallina, Independent Director (Appointed w e f August 12, 2024)
Visweswara Prasad Yalamanchili, Independent Ditector (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Ravinder Komaragiti , Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Srinivas Aravapalli, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Anjaneyulu Krothapalli, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f September 17, 2024)
Sneha Sunkaia, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f January 27, 2025)
Disha Jindal, Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. June 05, 2024) also appointed as
Compliance officer w.e.f. October 23, 2024)

i) Entities in which Ditectors and Key Management Personnel
(“KMP”) have a significant influence / control with whom Company
have made transactions during the reporting period/years
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited)
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited
Arun Kapital Networks
Arun Computers
Arun Infotech
M/s ARCS
Arovan Logistics
ACS Engineering Solutions
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited

Relative of Directors of Company Krishna Kumari Moturu (Upto August 24, 2024)
Arundeep Moturu (Upto August 24, 2024)

B Transactions during the year with related parties

Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Purchase of Goods

Ardec Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 46,73 81,83
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 15.80 14,57
Arun Kapital Networks 3.70 379.58
Ingwenyn Mineral Tech Private Limited 138.62 -
M/s ARCS - 0.04
ACS Engineering Solutions . 13,88
Purchase of property, plant & equiy tand I ible assets

Arun Computers 0.19 0.56
Arun Infotech 032 -
Arun Kapital Networks 0.96 -
Revenue from Contracts
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 3144 12,00
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 80.57 40,07
Arun Kapital Networks - 11.34
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 31.78
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited 6,17 -
Rent expense

M{s ARCS 347 3.29
Interest Expense
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited 2.10 .
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Particulars

For the year ended|

For the year ended

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other expenses
Arun Computers 034 1.32
Arun Kapital Networks 9.51 -
M/is ARCS 6.56 3.94
Arovan Logistics 19.41 25,57
Arun Infotech 1.04 -
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 3.80 -
Proceeds from Borrowings_Unsecured Loan
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 4150 143.30
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 4.57 59.05
Corporate Guarantee Given
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 52.50 -
Repayments of borrowings_Unsecured Loan
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 30.29 246.22
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 396 72.35
Retention Money Paid
Arun Kapital Networks 56.42 -
Advances from Customers

= 329
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Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Advance to suppliers

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 092 v
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 3.50
Advance taken

Awtin Kapital Networks 56.00 =
Advance repaid

Arun Kapital Networks 56.00 -
Staff Advance Given

Mr Arundeep Moturu 240 1.86
Mr. Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati - 0.15
Expenses reimbursed

M. Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati 077 -
Staff Advance repaid

M. Arundeep Moturu 7.47 -
Investment in Associates

Ardee Yantrik Private Limited 020 -
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 5.45
Proceeds from issue of equity shares including securties premium

Kir. Chandia Sekhar Moturu - 22500
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu - 25.00
Inter corporate deposits taken

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited 50.74 -
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited 130.00 =
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited 100.00 -
Inter corporate deposits repaid

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited 50.74 -
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited 130.00 -
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited 100,00 -
Reimbursement of expenses

Arovan Logistics 0,86
ACS Engineering Solutions 0.20 -
Mr. Chandia Sekhar Moturu 075 -
My Ragdeep Moturu 0.60 -
Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0,65 =
Ms. Disha Jindal 0.08 .
Employee benefits expense

Mis. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.95 2.40
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 0.95 2.40
Munngerial Remuneration (Refer note iii below)
M. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 3.98 330
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 4.80 4.80
Mr, Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati 372 2.99
Mrs, Krishna Kumari Moturu 145 -
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 145 -
Ms. Disha Jindal 0.91 -
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C Amount due to/from related parties :

Name of the related party As at As at
Murch 31, 2025 Maveh 31, 2024

Trude Payables

Axilee Drives Private Limited (formetly Balaji Drives Private Limited) - 115,07

Arun Computers 1.45 1.23

Arun Kapital Networks 2.65

Rotee Transmissions Private Limited 3.02 -

Inywenyu Mineral Tech Private Limited 4.05 -

Mfs ARCS 221 2.60

ACS Engineering Solutions 874 1141

Arovan Logistics 1.60 2.86

Investment in Associates

Ingwenya Mineial Tech Private Limited 5.45 545

Ardee Yantrik Private Limited 0.20 -

Trade Receivables

Ariee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 3.78 -

Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 2497 3169

Armun Kapital Networks - 3128

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 14.43

Blite Ocean Biotech Private Limited 023 -

Barrowings-lUnsecured loan

M. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 11.26 0,74

Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 0.56 0.66

Managerial Remuneration Payable

M. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 068 -

Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 0.71 -

M. Sundararama Sarma Gonepati 0.22 -

Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.16 -

Mr. Arundeep Moturu 0.16 -

Ms. Disha Jindal 0.09 -

Retention Money Payable

Arun Kapital Networks - 56.42

Advances received from customer

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) - 3.29

Advance to suppliers

Arilee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 0.92 -

Arun Infotech - 1.61

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 3.50

Reimbursement of expenses payable

Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.65 -

Ms. Disha Jindal 0.00 -

Staff Advance

Mr. Arundeep Moturu 0.05 512

Mr. Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati - 0.77

Share Issue Expenses Receivable

Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 8.97 -

Corporate Guarantee Given

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerdy Balaji Drives Private Limited) 52.50 -

Notes :

t. Personal guarantees were provided by Chandra Sekhar Moturu and Ragdeep Moturu towards borrowings facilities availed by the Company, where applicable. (refer

Note 17.1)

ii. All the related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and on arim length basis,
iii. Liability for gratutity on actuarial valuation basis are provided for the Company as a whole. Accordingly, amount pertaining to key managerial personnel are not
included.
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36
36.1

Fair value measurements

The carrving amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities by categories were as follows:

Particulars Notes FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost
As al March 31, 2025

Financial assets

Investments* 8 863 5.65
Trade receivables 12 2,358.77
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 1.54
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 - 166.71
Other financial assets 9 - 1.066 .95
Total financial assets 8.63 3,599.62
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17 - 3,131.72
Trade payables 18 - 2,15507
Other financial liabilities 19 - 28.13
Total financial liabilities - 5,314.92
*Investments in associate are valued at cost

As at March 31, 2024

Financial assets

Investments* 8 796 5.45
Trade receivables 12 - 1,558.63
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 1.08
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 - 24227
Other financial assets 9 . 1,053.49
Total financial assets 7.96 2,860.92
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17 - 1,850.59
Trade payables 18 - 1,698.37
Other financial liabilities 19 - 77.98
Total financial liabilities - 3,626.94

*Investments in associate are valued at cost
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36.2

36.3

(a)

®)

©

(d)

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels ol a fair value hierarchy. The (hree
levels are delined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items (unadjusted)
Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs
Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from markel data)

Particulars

Notes Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

As at March 31, 2025
Financial assets measured at fair value -

recurring fair value measurements

At FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds

Financial asscts measured at amortised cost
for which fair values are disclosed

Securily deposits

3242

3242

Total financial assets

8.63

32.42

41.05

Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost for which fair values are disclosed

Borrowings

3,131.72

3,131.72

Total financial liabilities

3,131.72

3,131.72

As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets measured at fair value -

recurring fair value measurements

At FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
for which fair values are disclosed

Security deposits

9.34

7.96

9.34

Total financial assets

7.96

9.34

17.30

Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost for which fair values are disclosed

Borrowings

1,850.59

1,850.59

Total financial liabilities

1,850.59

1,850.59

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the current year and previous year,

Methods and assumptions

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rates, The own non performance risk as at

year end was assessed to be insignificant. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs

The fair value of security deposits were calculated based on future cash flows using a current lending rate, These are based on discounted cash flow analysis, They
are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

The Company has not disclosed the fair values of financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents and trade payables, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value

The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV, These instruments are classified as level 1 fair values in the fair value hierarchy.

RIS
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37 Financial risk manag nt

37.1  General objectives, policies and processes
The Company is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks: (i) Credit risk; (i) Market risk comprising ol interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and other price isk; and
(iii) Liquidity risk
In common with all other businesses, the Company is exposed to risks that arise fiom its usc of financial instruments, This note desctibes the Company's objectives, policies and processes for
managing those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further quantitative information in respect of these risks is presented throughoul these consolidated financial statements
There have been no substantive changes in the Company's exposuie to financial instrument risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure
them fiom previous year unless otherwise stated in this note
The Board has the oveall responsibility for the determination of the Company's risk management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining ultimate 1esponsibility for them, it has delegated
the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the Company's finance function
The overall objective of the Boaid is to set policies that seek to reduce 1isk as far as possible without unduly affecting the Company's competitiveness and flexibility. Further details 1egarding
these policies are set out below

372 Credit risk
Cuedit risk is the tisk of financial loss o the Company if a customer or countetparty to a financial instiument fails to meel its contractual obligations, Credit risk arises principally from the
Company’s trade receivables, securily deposits, bank balances and other financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit 1isk is to prevent losses in financial assets, The
Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 and Maich 31, 2024 is the carrying amounts of financial asscts as per Note 36
None of the Company’s cash equivalents, other bank balances and security deposits were past due or impaired as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
Trade receivables and contract assets
The Company’s exposure to ciedit 1isk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit
risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and location in which customers operate. The Company limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables
by establishing a maximum payment period,
The Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates, adjusted for forward
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and Company makes appropriate provision whetever outstanding is for longer petiod and involves
higher risk. Generally, trade receivables are written-off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity. The maximuin exposute to credit risk at the 1eporting date
is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Nole 10 and 13. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The lettecs of credit and other fornms of credit insurance are
considered integral part of trade receivables and considered in the calculation of impairment. The Company evaluates the concentration of 1isk with respect to trade receivables and contract
assets as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets,
The movement in provision for expected credit loss for trade receivables are as follows:
Particulars Amouni
Loss allowance as at April 1, 2023 149.30
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year 24.06
Less: Utilised during the year (32.21)
Loss allowance as at March 31, 2024 141.15
Increase in loss allowance recopnised in profit or loss during the year 45,55
Less: Utilised during the year 4.37)
Loss allowance as at March 31, 2025 182.33

37.3  Market risk
Market risk arises from the Company's use of interest-bearing, tradable and foreign currency financial instruments. 1t is the visk that the fair value or futwe cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in inteest rates (intetest rate risk), foreign exchange rates (currency risk) or other market factors (other price risk). The objective of market risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return,

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company’s exposure to
the isk of changes in market intetest rate relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with vatiable intetest 1ates

(i) Exposure to inferest rate risk

Particulars As at As at
March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024
1,970,32 1,549.52

Borrowings with variable rate of interest
Borrowings with fixed rate of interest 1,161.40 299.67

(ii) Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on the portion of variable interest-bearing borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the

Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on such floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/
Particulars decrease in basis Balance Effection)profit
. before tax
points
March 31, 2025 +100/-100 1,970.32 19.70

March 31, 2024 +100/-100 1,549.52 15.50
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(b) Foreign exchange risk

The Company has no foreign curency teceivables o1 payables as on March 31, 2025 and Maich 31, 2024 and therefore foreign exchange risk is not applicable

37.4  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset
The Company's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due.

a) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following table sets out the contiactual maturities (representing, undiscounted contractual cash-flows) of financial liabilities:

Contractual cash flows

As at March 31, 2025 Note Carrying Upto3d Between 3 Between | Between 2
amount Total Over 5 years
Maonths amd 12 il and 2 years anil 5 years :
Lease liabilities 6 4321 52,35 5.04 14.54 14,23 18.54 -
Borowings 17 3,131.72 3,13925 2,022,50 204.47 261,49 457.82 192,97
Trade payables 18 2,155.07 2,155.07 1,531.13 623.94 - - -
Other financial liabilities 19 28.13 2813 2743 0.70 - - -
Total 5,358.13 5,374.80 3,586.10 843.65 275.72 476.36 192.97
Carrying Contractual cash flows
As at March 31, 2024 Note YT Total Uptd Between 3 Between | Between 2 Over Syeiis
Manths and 12 th and 2 years anid 5 years
Lease liabilities 6 21.78 24.50 3.21 8.31 9.49 3.49 -
Borrowings 17 1,850.59 1,856.76 746.25 736.47 9827 197.67 78.10
Trade payables 18 1,698.37 1,698.37 1,171 85 526.52 - - -
Other financial liabilities 19 77.98 77.98 21.56 56.42 - - -
Total 3,648.72 3.657.61 1,942.87 1,327.72 107.76 201,16 78.10

The interest payments on variable interest 1ate borrowings in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the teporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates
change. The future cash flows on contingent consideration may be different from the amount in the above table as the relevant conditions underlying the contingency change. Except for these
financial liabilities, it is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts
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(ii)

Segment information

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities fiom which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operaling tesults are repulatly
reviewed by the Company’s chief operating dccision maker (CODM) (o make decisions for which discrete consolidated financial statements is available. The Company is a design,
enginceting and manulacturing Company which is engaged in turnkey PEB projects, material handling and processing solutions, electrical and automation solutions, heavy structural
and precision engineering solutions. The CODM identified entire business as a singlc reportable segment, hence segment reporting is not applicable

Capital management

The Company's objectives when maintaining capital are:

(a) to safeguard the entity's abilily Lo continue as a going concem, so that it can conlinue to provide retumns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(b) to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk

The Company sets the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain ot adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shateholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equily ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by equity. Net debt is calculated as the total borrowings and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

The debt-to-adjusted-capital ratios were as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Borrowings and lease liabilities 3,174.93 1,872.37

Less: Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances (292,00) (206.66)

Net debt 2,882.93 1,605.71

Equity share capital 200.00 200.00

Other equity 1,168.36 671.70

Total cquity 1,368.36 871.70

Nef debt to equity ratio (fimes) 2.11 1.84

No changes were ade in the objeclives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years

Contingent liabilitics and commitments

Contingent liabilities

(a) There are no claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Corporate pruarantee given to related party { Refer note 35) 52.50 -

52.50 -

Total

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, related assets are recognised.
Commitments - There are Capital commitments amounting to Rs. 8.00 Mn as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024- NIL)

Audit Trail

The Company has used an accounting software for matntaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all the transactions recorded in the software. Further, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of the
preceding year, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the accounting software

Subsequent events
Pursuant to approval of Board and and Shareholders vide meetings dated July 4, 2025 and July 9, 2025 respectively, the company has issued 410,000 equity Shares on preferential basis

at the issue price of Rs. 425/- per equity share having Face value of Rs. 5/- per equity share (i.e. including Securities Premium at Rs. 420/- per equity share),

The management has assessed the subsequent events to the reporting period and is of the view that there are no material events which require adjustment or disclosure in the financial
statements except as disclosed in financial statements

Other regulatory information

Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules made
thereunder.

Borrowings secured against current assefs
The Company has borrowings secured against current assets and statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts,
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Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender

Relationship with struck off companies
The Company does not have any relationship with companies struck off undet Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act. 1956

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017

Undisclosed income
The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendeted or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the

Income-tax Act, 1961

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current period or previous years.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with ROC
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact in the current or previous financial

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary

shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)

that the Company shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code
has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued
The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassificd wherever necessary to correspond with current year’s classification/disclosures

These Standlaone Financial Statements were approved for Issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on August 29, 2025

As per our report of even date attached

For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates) Ardee Engineering Limited
ICAI Finn Registration No.: 0045993 Chartered Accountants (formerly known as Ardee Engineeting Private Limited)

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0015955/S000168

s v Bl

P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain Chandra Sekhar Moturu Ragdeep Moturu
Partner Partner Chairman and Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No, 029098 Membership No. 231741 DIN 02010969 DIN 07587747

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025

Y acan Ditha Jiudad

Krishna Kumari Moturu Disha Jindal

Executive Director and Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer

DIN 10376709 Membership No. A65058




C. Venkat Krishna & Co M S K C & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

4th Floor, Owners Pride Plot No 1717 1101/B, Manjeera Trinity Corporate,

Road No. 12, Banjara Hills, JNTU-Hitech City Road, Kukatpally,

Hyderabad - 500 034. Hyderabad- 500 072.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Ardee Engineering Limited [Formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private
Limited]
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ardee Engineering Limited
[Formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited] (hereinafter referred to as the “the
Company”) and its associates, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2025,
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of associates, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of
the Company and its associates as at March 31, 2025, and of consolidated profit including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and its associates in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India
(“ICAI”), and the relevant provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and on
consideration of audit reports of other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) & (b) of the “Other
Matter” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in Director’s report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes
in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Company including its associates in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the Company and of its
associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of its associates for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board
of Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of
Directors of the Company and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company
and of its associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and of its associates are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other Matter:

a) The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s share of net profit (including
other comprehensive income) of Rs. 6.61 million for the year ended March 31, 2025, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose
financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on the
report of the other auditor.
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b) The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s share of net loss (including
other comprehensive income) of Rs (0.03) million for the period November 27, 2024, to March
31, 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate,
whose financial statements have not been audited by M S K C & Associates LLP. These
financial statements have been audited by one of the joint auditor M/s. C. Venkat Krishna &
Co., whose report have been furnished to M/s M S K C & Associates LLP, by the Management
and M S K C & Associates LLP opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our report
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
associate, is based solely on the report of the other joint auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the associates referred
to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company
as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its associate companies incorporated in India, none of
the directors of the company, its associate companies incorporated in India are
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial
position of the Company and its associates.

ii. The Company and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-
teem-tontracts including derivative contracts.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company, and its associate companies
incorporated in India.

iv.

(1) The respective Managements of the Company and its associates which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such associates
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such associates
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this
audit report, that such parties shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company or any of such associates (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(2) The respective Managements of the Company and its associates which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such associates
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been

entity(ies), including foreign entities with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company or
any of such associates shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(3) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the
auditors of the associates which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, and according to the
information and explanations provided to us by the Management of the company
in this regard nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused
us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material

mis-statement.

V. The Company and its associate Companies which are incorporated in India, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, have neither declared nor
paid any dividend during the year,

vi. A. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year, has been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled
and recorded in the prior year as explained in Note 41 to the financial statements.

B. In respect of one associate, on consideration of the auditor’s report issued by the
other auditor, the company has used an accounting software for maintaining their
books of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording
i it{edit log) facility, and the same has been enabled and operated throughout

/L;ﬁ relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software. Further,
/5{‘* v .
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as reported by the other auditors there are no instances of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

C. In respect of one associate, on consideration of the auditor’s report issued by the
one of the joint auditor, the company has not used any accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the period November 27, 2024, to March 31, 2025
[refer note 41 to the financial statements]. Hence, reporting under the Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2021 read with sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the associate company.

2. In our opinion, according to information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company, to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section
197 of the Act and the rules thereunder, except in case of two associates, as the provision
of the aforesaid section is not applicable to private companies. '

3. According to the information and explanations given to us, the details of
Qualifications/adverse remarks made by us for the Company and on consideration of
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 (CARO) reports issued by the respective
auditors of the associates issued till the date of our audit report for the companies
included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Sr. Name of the | CIN Type of Company | Clause
No Company (Holding number  of
/Subsidiary/ the CARO
Associate) Report which
is qualified
or Adverse
1 Ardee Engineering | U29100TG2020PLC141953 Company Clause i(c)
Limited (formerly
known as Ardee
Engineering Private
Limited)
For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (Formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

ICAI Firm Registration Numb -:.704?99_5. : Chartered Accountants
AR

\{{;’f\“ﬁ\._ﬁ ICAl Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168
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P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner Partner

Membership No. 029098 Membership No. 231741
UDIN: 25029098BMIUNS4245 UDIN: 25231741BMLLAA7635
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED [ARDEE ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED]

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management and Board of
Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Company and its associates to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Company and its associates to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit,
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For M'S K C & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants _ (Formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

ICAI Firm Registration Numb 45995 Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168
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Yo Tefroan
P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain
Partner Partner
Membership No. 029098 Membership No. 231741
UDIN: 25029098BMIUNS4245 UDIN: 25231741BMLLAA7635
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED [FORMERLY KNOWN AS ARDEE
ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED]

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Ardee Engineering Limited [formerly
known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited] on the consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls reference to
consolidated financial statements of Ardee Engineering Limited [formerly known as Ardee Engineering
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) which includes the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company.

Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to two
associate companies incorporated in India namely ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited & Ardee
Yantrik Private Limited, pursuant to MCA notification GSR 583(E) dated 13t June 2017.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).

Management and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Management and the Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference
to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAl. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.




C. Venkat Krishna & Co M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants [formerly known as M S K C & Associates]
Chartered Accountants

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of Management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements,

Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, materjal misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also,
Projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (Formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

ICAI Firm Registration Numb Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168
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Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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Ardee Enginecring Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limitedy

(CIN: UZ‘)IOOTGZOZOI’L(‘M|953)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025
(Al amounts are Ry, in AMillion, except fir share

daned per share data amd where otherise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Asscts
Non-current asscts
a) Property, plant and equipinent 5 1,058 98 757 51
b) Capital wor k-in-progress S5A 804.01 -
c) Right-of-use asscts 6 4151 1946
d) Intangible assets 7 1.66 1.84
¢) Financial assets
(i) Investinents 8 13.64 6.86
(ii) Trade receivables 12 142,71 80.65
(iii) Other financial assets 9 125.19 24.28
f) Other assets 10 2.07 -
L) Deferred tax ossets (ner) 31 38,73 28.89
Total non-curvent assets 2,228,50 919.49
Current assefs .
a) Inventories 11 1,212.28 683,53
b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 8 863 796
(ii) Trade receivables 12 2,216.06 1,477,98
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 1.54 108
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 14 166,71 24227
(v) Other financial assets 9 941,76 1,029.21
©) Other nssets 10 33595 260,12
Total current nisets 4,482.93 3,702.15
Total assets 7,111.43 4,621,64
Equity and liabilities
Equity
a) Equity share capital 15 20000 200.00
b) Other equity 16 1,176.35 67301
Tuotal equity 1,376,35 873.11
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 903,50 371.71
(ia) Lease liabilities 6 28.11 10.26
h) Provisions 21 17.30 13.03
Total non-curvent liabilities 948,91 395,00
Current liabilitics
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 2,228.22 1,478.88
(ia) Lease liabilities 6 15.10 11.52
(ii) Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises mnd small enterprises 25824 1,028.37
Total outstanding dues of creditors other thim micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,896 83 670.00
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 28,13 77,98
b) Provisions 21 241 191
©) Other cuirent liabilities 20 33554 79.90
d) Current tinx linbilitics (net) 22 21.70 4.97
Total current linhilitics 4,786.17 3,353,53
Total linbilities 5,735.08 3,748.53
Total Lglliﬂ‘ and linhilities 7!11 1.43 4,621.64
Sew accompanying nofes forming part of the ¢ lated financial st 1-d6

As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Finn Registration No.: 0045998
P.V.N Sastry

ov;«(;
Partner

Membership No, 029098

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

For M S K C & Associates LLP
(formerly known as M SK C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firn Registration No.: 001595S/5000168
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Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner
Membership No. 231741

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

o lalin 1

Chandra Sekhar Moturu

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 02010969

/Qwafw‘
Krishna Kumari Moturu
Executive Director and

Chief Financial Officer
DIN 10376709

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

s

Ragdeep Moturu
Whole-time Director
DIN 07587747

Ditha Jiudal

Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer



Ardee Engineering Limited
(formerly known as Aidee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PL.C141953)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts ate Rs. in Million, except for sharc and per shate data and wheie otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue fiom operations 23 7,789.03 6,209 .90
Other income 24 38.11 1847
Total Income (1) 7.827.14 6,228.37
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 4,886.41 4,080.48
Changes in inventories of work-in-progiess 26 191.68 492
Employee benefits expense 27 35228 272.56
Finance costs 28 271.96 156.01
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 60.54 3585
Other expenses 30 1,398 28 1,265.33
Total expenses (11) 7.061.15 5.815.15
Profit before share ol profit from an gssociate and tax (1-11=111) __665.99 413,22
Share of profit fiom associates accounted using equity method (after tax) (1V) 6.58 1.41
Profit before tax (111+1V=V) 672.57 414.63
Tax expense 31
Current tax 179.68 101.20
Adjustment of incotne tax relating to earlier years (net) - 16.12
Deferted tax (9.97) 6.26
Total tax cxpense (V1) 169.71 123.58
Profit after tax (V-VI=VII) 502,86 291.05
Other comprehensive income
Ttéms that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 051 1.00
Deferred tax relating to these items (0.13) (0.25)
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax (VI 0,38 0.75
Tatal comprehensive income for the year (VIIFVILI=IX) S503.24 291.80
Lamings per equity share (Face value of Rs.5 each) 33
Basic (In INR) 12,57 7.65
Diluted (In INR) 12.57 7.65
See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 1-46
As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates) Ardee Engineering Limited

ICAL Firm Registiation No,: 0045998 Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0015955/S000168

aQ g

P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain
Partner Partner
Membership No. 029098 Membership No. 231741

Place: Hyderabad .
Date: August 29, 2025

(formerly known as Ardee Engineeting Private Limited)

Krishna Kumari Moturu

Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN 10376709

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

P ‘W s %/ /ffia

Jrandra Sekhar Moturu
ninmman and Managing Director

Ragdeep Moturu
Whole-time Director
DIN 07587747

Disha Jude

Disha Jindal

Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer
Membership No. A65058




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formetly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital Note Number of shares | Amount
As at April 1,2023 (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 1,90,00,000 190.00
Change during the year 15 10,00,000 200 00
As at March 31, 2024 (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 2,00,00,000 390.00
Suli-division of equily shares* 15 2,00,00,000 -
As at March 31, 2025 (Face Value of Rs. § each) 4,00,00,000 390,00
*Refer note 15 on Sub-division of equity shares
B. Other equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other ?omprehensivc Total
income
Securities premium Retained earnings Debenture | Remeasurement of defined
Redemptio [ benefit obligations routed
n Reserve through OCI
Balance as at April 1,2023 - 139.91 - 1.40 141.31
Profit for the year - 291 .05 - . 291 05
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 075 075
Securities premium on issue of equity shares 24000 - - - 24000/
Balance as at March 31, 2024 240.00 430,96 - 2.15 673.11
Profit for the year - 502 86 - - 502 86
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 038 038
Debenture Redemption reserve created - (15 00) 1500 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 240.00 918.82 15.00 2,53 | 1,176.35
See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated finaneid statements 1-46

As per our report of even date attached

TFor C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates) Ardee Engineering Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No : 004599S Chartered Accountants (formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001595S/S000168
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P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain T;;
Partner Partner | =
Membership No. 029098 Membership No 231741 *‘l Y
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Ragdeep Moturu
Whole-time Director
DIN 07587747

Distha Tiudad,

Krishna Kumari Moturu Disha Jindal

Executive Director and Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer

DIN 10376709 Membership No A65058

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025




Ardec Engincering Limited

(farmerly known as Ardec Engineeting Private Limitedt)

(CIN U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for (he year ended Mar

ch 31, 2025

(Allamounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise staled)

Particulars

For (he year ended
Manrch 31, 2024

For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2025

A, Cash Nlow from opcerating activities

Profit before lax 672,57 414 63
Adjustments for:
Deprecialion and amortisation expense 60 54 3585
Interest expense on borrowings measured al amortised cost 25493 14237
Interest expense on lease liabilities 282 292
Interes( income on securily deposils (0.18) (012)
Interest income on fixed deposits (19.17) (897)
Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment (024) .
Share of profit from an associate (6 58) (141)
Net gain on financial assets designated on FVTPL {0.67) (0 46)
Liabilities no longer required writlen back (1779) (8.92)
Other borrowing costs 12,16 649
Provision for credit impaired trade receivables 4555 2407
Advance impaired written off 19,16 -
Operating profit before working cupital changes 1,022.60 605,85
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operaling assets:
Trade receivables (845.69) (742.95)
Inventories (528.75) (236.97)
Other financial assets 87.16 (543.45)
Other assets (29.99) (156.54)
Adjustments for increnase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 431 63 901 37
Provision 528 434
Other financial liabilities (49 85) 6223
Otler linblities 255 64 (2067.55)
Cash fows from/{used in) opurations 348,03 (373.67)
Income tax paid (net of refund) {162.95) (111.45)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities A 185.08 (485.13)
B. Cash flows from investing netivities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work-in-progress and capilal advance) (1,157.61) (482 49)
Proceeds (rom sale of property, plant and equipment 158 180
Investment in associate (0.20) (5 45)
Investment in mutual funds - (750)
Movement in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent {24 88) (186.73)
Interest received on fixed deposits 19.17 897
Net cosh lows {used iu! i,nvrsli:lg netivitics ] (1,061.94) (671,40
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital including securities premium - 250.00
Share issue expenses {22.18) -
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,070 21 40351
Repayment of long term borrowings (241.98) (71.26)
Proceeds from short term borrowings (nel) 452.90 47972
Interest paid on borrowings (254 93) (136.67)
Other borrowing costs (12.16) (6.49)
Payment towards principal portion of lease liability (1222) (947
Interest paid on lease liabilities (2.32) (2.32)
Net eash Nows gencrated from fi ing activitic [ 977.32 907,02
Net Increase/(decrense) in cash ani cash equivalents A+BHC 0.46 (249.51)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.08 25059
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 13) 1.54 1.08
lidated financial 1-46

See avcompenying notes formisg part of the

As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co
Chartered Accountants

ICAT Firm Registration No : 0045993

Tovsant;

P.V.N Sastry

Partner
Membership No. 029098

“1 2,
. LY ,\L'l‘

Date: August 29, 2025

For M S K C & Associates LLP
(formerty known as M S K C & Associates)

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001595S8/S000168
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Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner
Membership No 231741

M. Grasdin b

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ardee Engineering Limited
(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
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Whole-time Director
DIN 07587747
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Disha Jindal

Company Secretary and
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Membership No. A65058
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Date: August 29, 2025




Ardee Engincering Limited
(formerly known as Atdec Engincering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PI_C141953)

Notes forming part of C lidated Financial Stat

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per shaie data and where otherwise staled)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(¢)

Corporate information

Audec Engineeting Limited (formerly known as Ardee Engincering Private Limited) (*the Company’/* Atdee”) is a design, engincering and manufacturing cntity formed in year 2008
as a partnership firm. On July 20, 2020. the Paitnetship fitm was converted into private limited company undet the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Later, the Company was
converted fiom private limited company to public limited company, puisuant to a special resolution passed in the extraoidinary general meeting of the shareholders of the Company
held on June 5, 2024 and consequently the name of the Company was changed to Ardee Engineeting Limited w.e f August 05, 2024 The 1egistered office is located al H. No. 8-2-
334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103, Aditya Court, Road No. 5, Banjaia Hills, Hyderabad - 500034, Telangana, India

The Company is engaged in turmnkey PEB projects, material handling and processing solutions, electrical and automation solutions, heavy structural and precision engineering
solutions. Infiastructure, lmigation, Mining and Minerals, Ports, Power and Oil and Gas, are the major sectors where Ardee has operated in

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its interest in associates (tefer Note 37) for the year ended March 31, 2025 and for the
year ended March 31, 2024

Summary of Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"),
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time and presentation requirements
of Division Il of Schedule 111 to the Act, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111), as applicable to the consolidated financial statements

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of measurement

This consolidated financial statements has been prepated on accrual basis and under historical cost convention, except for the following items (refer to individual accounting policies
for detaily:

i. Certain financial insttuments - Fair value through profit or loss

ii. Net defined benefit asset / (liability) - Present value of defined benefit obligations

The Company has prepared the consolidated financial information on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statementsis presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the functional and presentation cutrency of the Company. All the amounts disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements which also include the accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions except for share and per share data and where otherwise
stated, up to two decimal places as per the tequirement of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013,

Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with principles of Ind AS requites the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the

teported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting petiod. Although these estimates ate based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future years

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and futuwe years if the revision affects both current and future years.

In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note no 3.

Classification between - Current and Non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in nonnal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, ot

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted fiom being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating Cycle
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle as

12 months for the purpose of its assets and liabilities as current and non-cuent
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Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: UJ29100TG2020PLC 141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and whete otherwise stated)

2.2

23

24

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements presented for the teporting years include the financial statements of the Company and its sharc in associales accounted in accordance with the
televant Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

Associates ale entitics over which the Company exeicise significant influence but does not control. Significant influence is assessed annually with reference to the voting power
(usually atising fiom cquity shareholdings and potential voting tights) and other rights (usually contractual) enjoyed by the Company in its capacity as an investor that provides it the
power and consequential ability to direct the investee’s activities and significantly affect the Company’s retums fiom its investment. Such assessment requites the exercise of
judgement and is disclosed by way of a note to the consolidated financial statements

An investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost on the date of the investment, and inclusive of any goodwill/capital teseive embedded in the cost, in the Balance Sheet
The proportionate share of the associate in the net profits as also in the other comprehensive income is tecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the camrying value of the

investment is adjusted by a like amount (1eferred as ‘equity method’)

The entitics conolidated in c lidated financial st ts for the year ended March 31, 2025 are listed below:
Particulars Country of Relationship Date of Incorporation or| % of efective ownership interest held (Directly/Indirectly)
Incorporation acquisition
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Ardee Engineering India Parent July 20, 2020 - -
Limited
Ingwenya Mineral Tech India Associate February 02, 2008 21.63% 21.63%
Private limited
Ardee Yantrik Private India Associale November 27, 2024 40.00% -
limited

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) are stated at cost, Jess accumulated depieciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, The cost comprises its putchase price, including

import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any expenditure directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and eslimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs ditectly atiributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and 1emoving the item and restoring the site on which it is located

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carying amount o1 recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repaits and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred. 1f significant parts of an item of PPE have different
useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate itemns (major components) of property, plant and equipment

Capital wotk in progiess is stated at cost, net of accurnulated impairment loss, if any

An iten of propety, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fiom its use o1
disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis on the Straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013

The estimated useful life, residual values and the depreciation method ate 1eviewed at the end of each teporting period, with effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis

The useful life of assets are as follows:

Tangible assets Useful life as per Schedule 11 selllifC catinated by the =z besedionit=chnital
assessment

Buildings 30 years 15 - 30 vears

Plant and machinery 15 years 3 - 15 vears

Furniture and fixtures 10 vears 10 years

Computers 3 vears 3 years

Office equipments 5 years 5 - 10 vears

Vehicles 8 years 8-15 years

Based on the technical experts assessment of useful life, certain items of property plant and equipment are being depreciated over useful lives different from the prescribed useful lives
under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. Management believes that such estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets
are likely to be used, The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset

In case of a revision of useful lives, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the tevised remaining useful life.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquited are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impainment Josses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price and directly

attiibutable cost of prepating the asset for its intended use, Amortisation is 1ecognised on a Straight line method basis over their estimated useful lives so as to reflect the pattern in
which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The estimated useful life and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.c., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use ot disposal. Any gain
or loss atising upon derecognition of the asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the

statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The useful life of asset is as follows:

Asset Useful lives

Software 5 years

/ \k\’*"‘:fhj‘:’;?\
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2.5

2.6

2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses al each year end whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset o1 a group of non financial assels is impaired Il any such indication exists,
the Company estimates the assel's tecoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an assel’s cairying amount and recoverable amount. Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in
an allowance account, When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of 1ecovery of the asset, the televant amounts are wrilten off. If the amount of impairment
loss subsequently decreases and the deciease can be related objectively to an event occurting after the impainment was recognised, then the previously 1ecognised impairment loss is
reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss

The tecoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the gieater of its value in use and its fait value less costs to sell. T assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to theit present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 1eflects curient market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets ate grouped together into the smallest Company of assets that genetales cash in flows fiom continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Group of assets (the “cash-generating unit”)

Leases
The Company assesses at contiact inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a year of

time in exchange for consideration

Company as a lessee:
The Company applies a single recognition and neasurement approach for all leases, except for short-lerm leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognizes lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets

Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use asset at the lease commencement date (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measuted at cost, less any

accuimulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial ditect costs incurred and an estimate of costs to disimantle and remove the
underlying asset or to 1estote the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a stiaight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impainment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.5 Impairment of non-financial assets,

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease terin. The lease payments

include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option teasonably certain to be exeicised by the Company and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 1eflects the Company exercising the option to terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the year in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs

[n calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accietion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made, In
addition, the catrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease tetm, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting fiom a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to puichase the underlying asset

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the shoit-tern lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of land and Buildings, machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of

12 months or less fiom the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). 1t also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value

ineasurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that martket participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their econornic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another matket participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs '

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the hansaction price — i e, the fai value of the consideration given or received. If the
Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs fiom the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to
defer the difference between the fair value on initial 1ecognition and the transaction price. Subsequently that difference is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on an appropriate
basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (imadjusted) market prices in active maikets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has detennined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above
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2.8

2.9

Inventorics
Inventories are valued al the lower of cost and net realisable value
i Raw materials, components and stores and spares:

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. However, matetials and other items held for use in the
production of inventorics are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost Cost of raw materials,
components and stores and spares is determined on a weighted average method, Stotes and spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as
inventoties

ii Work-in-progress:
Lower of cost and net 1ealizable value, Cosl includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is
determined on a moving weighted average basis

iii Serap:
Scrap is valued at net realizable value

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary cowrse of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to inake the sale

Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highty probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, 1egardless of when the

payment is being made
Contract with customers include pre-engineeied building, material handling and engineering contracts along with erection and installation services. All the supplies and services are
considered as one peiformance obligation as the Company believes underlying goods and services are single performance obligation, single commercial objective or the consideration

in one contract depends on another.

In respect of the contracts, revenue is recognised over a period of time using the input method (equivalent to percentage of completion method POCM) of accounting with contract
costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the performance obligation.
Percentage of completion is determined on the basis of proportion of the costs of shipment made and cost of erection incurred as against the total estimated cost of shipment and

erection,
The transaction puice is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects (o be entitled in exchange for transfering goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts

collected on behalf of a third party. Payment tenns agreed with a customer are as per business practice, and there is no financing component involved in the transaction price.

Liquidated damages (L.D) represents the expected claim which the Company may need to pay for non-fulfilment of certain commitiments as per the terms of respective sales contract
These are determined on case to case basis considering the dynamics of each contract and the factors 1elevant to that sale,

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
such probability occurs. Due to the uncertainties attached, the revenue on account of extra claims are accounted for at the time of acceptance / settlement by the customers.

The Company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale These assurance-type wairanties are accounted for under Ind AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,

Interest income

Interest income on investments and loans is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate including interest on investments classified
as fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income. Interest receivable on customer dues is recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on accrual basis provided there is no uncertainty of realisation.

Contract balances

a. Contract Assets:
Revenue eamned but not billed to customers against contiact with customers is reflected as unbilled revenue under "Other financial assets” because the receipt of consideration is
conditional on Company's performance under the contract (i.e. transfer control of related goods or services to the customer), Upon completion of the installation and acceptance by

the customer, the amount 1ecognised as unbilled 1evenue is reclassified to trade receivables

Contract assets are subject to impainnent assessment. Refer to the accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in note 2.13 Financial instruments — initial recognition and

subsequent measurement,

b. Trade Receivables:
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to the

accounting policies of financial assets in note 2. 13 (Financial instruments ~ initial recognition and subsequent measurement)

c. Contract Liabilities:
A contract liability is 1ecognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services
These amounts are reflected as Advance from customers under "Other liabilities". Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e.,

transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).
p——
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2.10

2,11

2,12

Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined conttibution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contibution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contiibution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders (he ielated service

Defined benefit Plan
A defined benefit plan is a posl-employment benefit plan other than a defined contiibution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by

estimaling the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the curtent and priot periods, discounting that amount and deducting the faiv value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for
the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds fiom the plan or reductions in future contributions to
the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the 1etum on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding inteiest), ate 1ecognised immediately in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense/ (income) on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) for the period by
applying the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting petiod on government bonds. This rate is applied on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset), both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking info account any changes in the net defined benefit liability/(asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans ate recognised in profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is cuttailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost® or *past service gain®) or the gain or
loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the setilement occurs

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, govemed by the Payment of Giatuity Act, 1972 which entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous
service, to ratuity payable on termination of his employment at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part theteof in excess of six months, based on the

rate of wages last drawn by the employee concemned.
All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, made by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The

classification of the Company’s net obligation into current and non-cuirent is as per the actuarial valuation report

Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in determination of the net profit or loss for the year.

Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measuted at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Cunient tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences aising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply when the 1elated deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled

Deferred tax assets are 1ecognised for all deductible temporary differences only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and
losses.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Defenred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, o to 1ealise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econormic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any teimbursement.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions aie discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurience or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not 1ecognized because either it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or a 1eliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent

liabilities are disclosed and not recognized,

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date
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2.13

Financial instruments
A financial instument is any contiact that gives tisc to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability ot equity instrument of another entity

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement:
All financial assets ate recognised initially at fair value plus, (in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through statement of profit and loss) transactlion costs that aie

attributable to the acquisition of the financial assct. Transaction costs of financial assels carried at fair value thiough profit ot loss are expensed off in the statement of profit & loss
Trade receivable that does not contain a significant {inancing component ate measured at transaction price.

Classification and subsequent ement:

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset There are thice
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows those cash flows tepresent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income fiom these financial assels is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss atising on detecognition and impainment losses (if
any) are recognised directly in profit or loss.

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables and security deposit

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measuted at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which ate recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is detecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified fiom equity to profit or loss

The Company has not designated any financial asset (debt instruments) at FVTOCI

Fair value through profit or loss: Asscts that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recopnised in profit or loss.
The Company has designated investments in mutual funds (debt instruments) in this category.

Derecognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primatily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s

summary statements of assets and liabilities) when:
- The rights to receive cash flows fiom the asset have expired, or
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows fiom the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

Impairment of financial assets

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that 1esult from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12- month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is equired for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, itrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL),

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs, Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
reconises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matiix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic envitoninent

Financial labilities and equity

An instruments issued by a Company aie classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contiact that evidences a 1esidual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds 1eceived, net of direct issue costs,

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurcment:

Financial liabilities ae classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Suh: "
q

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains ot losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statemnent of Profit and Loss.

’r
ement:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
This category generally applies to borrowings. For rade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the camrying amounts approxitnate fair value due to

the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another fiom the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability ave substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

Offsetting financial instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis ot realize the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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2.16

3.1

(a)

()

(©)

(d)

(e)

M

Investments in the nature of equify in Associate

Investment in associate aic accounted tor using the ‘equity method” less accumulated impaitment, if any

Earnings Per Share

Basic camings per share aie calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
duting the year

The weighted average number of equity shaics outstanding duting the year adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,share split, and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a conesponding change in resources

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per shaie, the net profit or loss for the year atributable to equity shareholdets and the weighted average number of shates outstanding
during the year ate adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equily shares

Scgment Reporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments ate reported in a manner consistent with the interal 1eporting provided to the chief operating decision maker, The Board of Directors monitors the operating
results as a single segment considering activities of manufacturing, supply, erection and installation of pre- engineered buildings, material handling solutions and related setvices as
one single operating segment, The analysis of geogiaphical segments is based on the location in which the customers are situated

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The prepaiation of consolidated financial statements 1equites management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 1evenues, expenses,
asscts and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require

a maletial adjustiment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years

Judgements / estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
information:

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carying amounts of assets and liabilities within the financial year, are described below:

a The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared

b. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the contiol of the
Company. Such changes aie reflected in the assumptions when they occur

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining the revenue to be recognized in case of performance obligation satisfied over a period of time; revenue recognition is done by measuring the progress towards complete
satisfaction of performance obligation.

Determining the expected losses, which are recognized in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected total contract cost as of the repotting date

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for detenmining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed

by the management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a 1evision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful lives of the assets

Contingent liabilities

The Company uses significant judgements to assess contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made,

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company makes provision of expected ciedit losses on tiade receivables using a provision matiix. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates, adjusted
for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and the Company makes appropriate provision wherever outstanding is for

longer petiod and involves higher risk

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of

customer’s actual default in the future,

Defined benefit plans (Gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are detenmined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions

All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality table . The mortality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes, Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates

Deferred tax recognition
Deferred tax asset (DTA) is recognized only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will have sufficient taxable profits in future against which such

assets can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of defenied tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies, recent business performance and developments.
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4 Recent ace ing p
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notificd amendments (o various Indian Accounting Standards thiough the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2025

and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2025 as under:

* Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 10: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
These amendments are introduced to clarify the requitements on determining whether a liability is curtent or non-current and r1equire new disclosures for non-cuntent liabilities that are
subject to future covenants. These amendments apply for the annual reporting periods beginning on ot after April 1, 2025, while certain amendments are effective for annual teporting
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2026, The Company is in the process ofassessing the impact of these amendments, which will be applied retrospectively in accordance with Ind
AS 8, These amendments may particulatly affect the classification and disclosures relating to non-curient borowings subject to future covenant compliance

* Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 7: Supplier Finance Arrangements
These amendments intioduce new disclosures 1elating to supplier finance anangements that assist users of the financial statements to assess the effects of these anangements on an

entity’s liabilities and cash flows and on an entity's exposure to liquidity tisk. The amendments apply for the annual 1eporting petiods beginning on or after April I, 2025
The Company is in the process of assessing whether any of its supplier related financing arrangements fall within the scope of these amendiments and, if so, will provide the 1equited

disclosures

* Amendments to Ind AS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Lack of Exchangeability)

These amendments require assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable and also requires specific disclosures viz
the nature and financial effects of the currency not being exchangeable, the spot exchange rates used, the estimation process, and the risks to which the entity is exposed because of
the currency not being exchangeable. The amendment also lays down transition requirements, while specifically stating that an entity shall not restate comparative information in
applying Lack of Exchangeability. These amendments are effective from Aptil 1, 2025; however, these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements as the Company’s transactions are limited to currencies that are fieely convertible and exchangeable, and management has assessed that no significant restrictions

apply to its operations

* Amendments to Ind AS 12: International tax reform—Pillar Two model rules

The amendments to Ind AS 12 have been introduced in response to the OECD's BEPS Pillar Two rules and include a mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the jurisdictional implementation of the Pillar Two model tules and disclosure tequirements for affected entities to help users of the financial
statements better understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes aiising from that legislation

These amendments have no impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company is not in scope of the Pillar Two model rules

This space is intentionally left blank



SBUIMO1I0Q PaI2as uo a5reyo 0 Joafqns juswdmbs pue juerd ‘Apadord uo syrejep 1oy [ L1 90N 1359y (1)

ouidinbs pue juerd ‘Apsdoid sy panjeae: jou sey Auwedwo) ag (1)

sajoN
86'850°1 8TY9I1 17°S1 se°e SI'T 9E€°SET €S°ET1 0L¥TS SZ0T ‘I€ Y24€IA| JE s Junowe Sutkiied JaN
IS°LSL PL9E] 66°L LIS £6°T b8 11T £S°811 1€°LLT ¥T0T ‘1€ Ya1eN Je se Junowe Juifiied Joy
96°¢6 66°SH 6°¢ £9°p 650 SL'LT 80°TI - ST07 ‘1€ YIEJN JE SE duE[eg
1o - = - z 1o : - sfesodsiy
08 LY s lc 86 ¢ 08 1 SC0 5991 00°¢ = Teak ay) 10y uanezidacy
LT9t Ly'vT re'l €8°C Pe0 1711 809 - $20T "I UIEIA I8 Sé 3duejeq
120 120 = - . ¥ - - s[esodsiq
08¢t LLEL 980 91 7o £€9 $9'¢ - Teak ay3 10] uoyeroadag
uoyerdadap pajenunoay
P6'ZSI'l LT01T €€°61 818 vL'T 11°€9T 19°%T1 0L S ST0T ‘T€ YIEIN JE SE due[eg
vl £ = - = Y1 - = sresodsiq
190cg 90 o 0ol 81T LY O sy = 6¢ LYT SUOHIPPY
8L°€08 177191 ££°6 00°9 LTT IX44 19°9T1 I1€'LLT PZ0T ‘TE Y21EIN € SE Ddukeg
0¢ 0¢ - > = = - = sresodsrq
19 08¢ 0S SL €96 LOE 560 OF €51 [CAT ST 6L SUOLIPPY
8I°€T¢ TLL8 (U EE'E LT §9°69 00'Te 90°86 €707 1 [l 1® s duejeg
saanxy AfanjEBw (3505 pauraap 10 3500 7€) An[ea Surf11e) ssoan

[ej0 EETRITEYN Juwawdmba 201350 ssnduo)) PU® InjimIng pue jur(g s3urping pue|

yuwowdmbs pue juerd ‘Kasdory ¢

(Pa1e)s as1MI0Y0 219yM pure Byep areys Iod PUE 3Ieys 10} 1d30xa UOIIA Ul 'S ore sjunoure [y)
Suawae)s [euRUL] pajepriosuo)) Jo yed Suimioy sajoy

(€561 1121d0TOTDLO016Z0) :NID)

(Poyun ayeAng SunaauFug aspry se uwsouy Lp1awioy)

pay ] Sutrdsuiduy 9pay



104 2q 07 £|331] 3re pajeyndys suoiipuod
A (B 3By MIAA By o s juswafeuew Ay

ajep Suruodas

a4l Jo se Aypoey Suunioggnuew mau oy jo dn
Str3as 103 Junowre Aue paunour jou sey Ajjua ay [
$Z0T ‘L0 YoIeA pajep 1apd|

{ustiioj|e feuly ut pajejndns suolpuco o} jaafgns
5l pasp 3jeg JO UOHNIIXY/A[IM JO JYSurl) Il
podar mafoud

pajiagp rod se  AQuoey Suungogjnuew st
L0 dn Suiyas so3 pasiun 3q [[eYs puB| Payo|[e Ay |
Auedwo)) ay) pue pyT DO Uaawyag

PRIHUR

€COT ‘Il YR parep 3fes Jo juawoalfe =i
0} juensind Auedwo]) ay) Aq paumbon sem puej 1|

S4B (113 01 $T0L
139030() o1 g

ON

[P¥1 DID1] partwry wonelodio)
2INJorL)Seu] [eLSNpU] BUBSUR]I ],

IS 1£9

indweieyiaag je pue

Auedwo)) Jo Sweu uf ply Suraq Jou 10 uoseay

PI3Y portag

9940jdws 10 A1jR[RL

113Y) 10 1033311p ‘s3)owold
JO dwBu ul SI JI PYFIYM

JO dwbu ur ppPY

(ugy ot *syq)
JnpuA Burliie ssoug

Ky1adosg jo uondiaasaq

12d se passasse are sydafosd ayy [[e pue juswuoriaus A1oenIal Ansnpui ; Aurouoos ; sjuswdajaaap je3150{0uyas) ‘ssauisnq UMY 314 $3)eWNSa pue JuawaFpn| s

'm0[2q sapnjout ssaigord ur 3oaforg ¢

sfumoLeq painoas uo ddreyd o} oalqns juswdinba pue juerd ‘Apadosd uo syreyap 105 | /1 210N 13399 T

'$TOT ‘1€ Youmpy 1067 weyd [eur3uo s yim paiediuos 3s03 S pasdxa SBY 10 ANpISA0 st uoya[dwios asoym ‘spoaford ssai301d ui-yiom [eydes ou are aray ] ueld arpousad

JuswaFeuely Jo siseq ai ua Ajjeorporiad pamaiaal are suerd uonnoaxa joafoig |

:53)0N

papuadsns Ajresodwsa) s303fo1g

§sa1801d Ul §393101g

s183k ¢ uey) a1y SIBIAC-Y | S183A T-1 [Je3R [ ueq) sso]

Jo porrad e 10§ JTAND) Ul Junoury

sinany ey

FIOT 1€ PV e Sy

Papuadsns A[ireiodwa) sjoalo1g

10 ¥08

(M0][2q $2)0U 13197) ssa1501d ur 5302101

SIBIA ¢ UEL) 210y SIBIAC-T | SIB3A Z-] |JEdA [ uBy} sso]

Jo porrad € 10} JIA4D) Ul Junoury

sJB[NOY By

STOT "LE 1Paejy Ju sy
a[npayas Furdy

10408

10%08

aoue[eq Fuiso[)

reak ayy Suunp pasifender
1eak oy Suumnp suonippy
Joue|eq Fumadyy

0T 1€ PIEY e sy

ST0T "IE Y218 JE SY

ssauBoad-ur-ytom [ende)

Vs

(Pajess asuatayio a1aym pue ejep a1eys sad pue areys 103 1d20X3 ‘WOIN[IA Ul S 27 S)unOWE nv)

EIS [Bukuly p

P D Jo 1aed Buiwaoj sajoN

(£561%1371d0Z0ZOL0016Z1 NID)

(payury sjeanlg Sunesutfug sapry se umoLn| AJauLiog)

pajuiry 3ursddumBuy a9pry



Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

6 Right of use assets and Lease liabilities

Right-of-use asscis:

Description Buildings Plant and Total
machinery
Cost as at Aprif 1, 2023 19.31 8.20 27.51
Additions 927 9.27
Deletions - - -
Cost as at March 31, 2024 28.58 8.20 36.78
Additions 3434 - 34.34
Deletions - F: i
Cost as at March 31, 2025 62.92 8.20 71.12
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2023 5.60 1.89 7.49
Depreciation for the year 7.93 1.90 9.83
Deletions - - -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2024 13.53 3.79 17.32
Depreciation for the year 10.40 1.89 12.29
Deletions - = -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2025 23.93 5.68 29.61
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 15.05 4.41 19.46
38.99 2.52 41.51

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025

Lease liabilities:

(i) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Balance at the beginning 2178 22.27
Additions during the year 33,65 898
Accrual of interest 232 232
Interest paid on Jease liabilities (2.32) (2.32)
Payment of lease liabilities (12.22) 9.47)
Closing balance 43.21 21.78
Less: Current lease liabilities 1510 11,52

28.11 10.26

Non-current lease liabilities

(ii) Payments recognised as expenses:

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
157.32 105.23

Short-term leases and low value assets (refer Note 30)

Notes:
(i) Leases where Company is a lessee

The Company has lease contracts for buildings and Industrial property which has lease term between 3 to 6 years. The Company also has lease contracts for plant and

machinery, which has lease term of 6 years.

The Company also has certain leases of equipment, machinery and commercial space with lease term up to 12 months. The Company applies the recognition

exemptions relating to short-term leases

(ii) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis are disclosed in Note 36
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Ardee Engineering Limited
(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC 141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

7

Intangible assets
Description

Computer Software

Cost as at April 1, 2023 0.52
Additions 1.59
Disposals -
Cost as at March 31, 2024 2.11
Additions 027
Disposals
Cost as at March 31, 2025 2.38
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2023 0.05
Amortisation for the year 022
Disposals -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2024 0.27
Amortisation for the year 045
Disposals -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2025 0.72
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 1.84
1.66

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025

Note:
The Company has not revalued its intangible assets,

This space is intentionally left blank




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Aidee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Conselidated Financial Statements

(All amounts ate Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where othenwise stated)

8 Investments
As at Mureh 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
Number Amount Number Amount
Non-current
Investment in Associate
In unquoted equity shares (fully paid up) (accounted using
equity method)
(i) Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private limited - Equity shares 90,870 13.47 90,870 6.86
having face value of Rs.100 each
(ii) Aidee Yantiik Private limited - Equity shares having 20,000 017 - -
face value of Rs, 10 each*
13.64 6.86

*The Company acquired 20,000 equity shares at face value Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs.0.20 Mn as subscriber to the memorandum of Aidee Yantrik Private
Limited, incorporated on November 27, 2024 repiesenting 40.00% of the total equity shaie capital

Current
Investments in unquoted mutual funds (carried at fair value
through profit and loss)

HDFC Short Term Debt-G 2,75,693.13 8.63  2,75,693.13 7.96
8.63 7.96

Notes:
(a) Aggregate value of unquoted investments in equity shares 13.64 6.86
(b) Agpregate value of unquoted investments in mutual funds 8.63 7.96
0.67 0.46

(c) Change in fair value of the investments in mutual funds during the year
(d) Refer Note 35 for fair value measurements and Note 36 for information about the Company's exposure to financial risks.
(e) Refer Note 17.1 for details on investinents subject to charge on secured borrowings.

9 Other financial nssets (Unsecured, idered good)
As at March As at March
31,2025 31,2024
Non-current
Security deposits 1.44 0.97
Deposits with maturity more than 12 months
Margin money deposits with banks* 123,75 2331
125.19 24.28
Current
Security deposits 3098 837 '
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with bank 6.10 10.73
Unbilled revenue 898.78 1,005.74
Other receivables 5.90 437
941.76 1,029.21

* Margin money deposits held against issuance of bank guarantees and letter of credits provided in favour of customers and suppliers

10 Other assets

As at March As at March

31, 2025 31,2024
Non-current
Capital Advance 2.07 -
2.07 -
Current
Advances recoverable in kind or for value to be received 127,54 100.25
Prepaid expenses 973 246
Balance with government authorities 133,68 157,41
Share issue expenses* 65.00 -
335.95 260,12

*During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company incurred expenses in connection with the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) of equity shares of the
Company by way of fiesh issue and an offer for sale by the existing shareholders. In relation to the IPO expenses incurred till date, except for listing fees which
shall be solely borne by the Company, all other expenses will be shared between the Company and the Selling Shareholders on a pro-rata basis, in proportion to
the equity shares issued and allotted by the Company in the fresh issue and the offered shares sold by the selling shareholders in the offer for sale.

11 Inventories
As at March As at March
31,2025 31,2024
All inveniories except for scrap are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value and scrap is valued at net realisable value
Raw material* 1,043.19 32921
Work-in-progress 90.38 33045
Store and spares 28.40 2195
Scrap 50.31 1.92
1,212.28 683.53

. inuhldjf g%dh—il\-{mnsil amounting to Rs. 11.58 Mn (March 3
t y&: 731 fifl details on Inventories subject to charge
PeE3gpy




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limiled)

(CIN U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs in Million, excepl for share and per share data and whete otherwise staled)

12 Trade receivables
As al March Asat March 31,
31, 2025 2024
Non-Current
Unsecured
- Considered good 142 71 80 65
142,71 80.65
Current
Unsecured
- Considered good 2,216 06 1,477 98
- Credit impaired 182 33 141 15
2,398.39 1,619.13
Less: Allowance for credit impaired trade receivables (refer note g below) (18233) (141.15)
2,216.06 1,477.98

Notes:
(a) Amounts due from related parties out of the above (rade receivables (refer note 34)

(b) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 0 to 90 days from date of invoicing other than retention money which is due upon expiry of defect liability

period. The Company does not hold any collateral security

(c) Trade receivables includes retention money apgregaling to Rs 238 57 Mn (March 31, 2024: Rs, 90 88 Mn)
(d) Refer Note 36 for information aboul the Company exposure to financial risks, and delails of impairment losses for trade receivables and fair values

(e) Refer Note 17.1 for details on Lrade receivables subject to charge on secured borrowings
(F) No Trade receivables are due from directors or officers of the company

(g) Ageing of Trade receivables

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Non-current  Current Qutstanding for following periods ffom due date of Receipts
but not Due but not Less than 6 months-1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
Due 6 Months year years years 3 years
Undisputed trade receivabl

— considered good 142.71 1,538.68 267.14 367.00 4232 092 - 2,358 77

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - = - - - -

— ciedit impaired - - 196 2931 67 26 2877 5503 18233
Disputed trade receivables

— considered good - - - - -

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -

— credit impmred - - - - - - - -
Subtotal 14271 1,538 68 26910 396 31 109 58 2969 35.03 2.541.10
Less: Allowanee for credit impaired trade recervables - - {1.96) (29.31) (67:26) (28.77) (55.03) (182,33)
Total 142.71 1.538.68 267.14 367.00 42,32 0.92 - 2,358.77
As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Non-current  Current Outstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts
but not Due but not Less than 6 months-1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
Due 6 Months year years years 3 years
Undisputed trade receivabl

~ considered good 80.65 965 42 226 86 73.68 15922 5280 - 1,558 63

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - = - -

— credit impaired - - e . 14115 - 141 15
Disputed trade receivables

— considered good - - - - . - - -

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - = - - -

— credit impaired - - - - - » - =
Subtotal 8065 965 42 226 86 73 68 15922 193 95 - 1,699.78
Less: All for credit impaired trade receivables - - - = & (141.15) B (141.15)
Total 80.65 965.42 226.86 73.68 159.22 52.80 - 1,558.63




Ardee Engineering Limited
(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Ci
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(h) Expected credit loss (ECL)
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characterislics of each customer Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers Lo which the Company granls credit in the normal course of business Before accepting any new customer, the Company assesses Lhe

potential customer's credit quality

The movement in the allowance for credit loss:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 141 15 14930
Less: Written off during the year {437) (32.21)
Add: Provision created during the vear 4555 24 06
182.33 141,15

Closing halance

(i) Of the trade receivables balance of Rs. 1,785 45 Mn for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs 896.12 Mn) is due from Company's largest customers individually representing
more Lhan 5% of total trade receivables balance

Cash and cash equivalents

As al March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024
Cash on hand 012 03]
Balances with banks:
In current accounts 142 077
1.54 1.08

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024
Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months
Margin money deposils with banks* 166 71 24227
166.71 242.27

* Margin money deposits held against issuance of bank guarantees and letter of credits provided in favour of customers and suppliers

This space is intentionally left blank



Ardee Engineering Limited

(formetly known as Ardee Engineenng Private Linnted)

(CIN U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statenents

(All amounts are Rs in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where otherwise slated)

15 Equity share capital
As at March 31, 2024

ithorized share capitnl

7.00.00.000 equity shares of Rs 5 each* {Murch 31, 2024: 3,50,00,000 equily shares of Rs_10 each) 35000 350 00

Issuenl, subiseribed gl folly padd up

4,00,00.000 eyuity shares of Rs. 5 each* {Murch 31, 2024 2,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each) 200 00 200 00
200,00 200,00

(1) Shareholders vide the Extra-ordinary general meeting dated March 30, 2024 have approved increase i Authorised Equity Share Capital of the Company from Rs 200 00 Mn divided
into 20,000,000 Equity shates of Rs 10 each to Rs 350,00 Mn divided into 3,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each by addition of 1,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each, ranking pari-
passu with existing shares of the Company

(ii) Sub-division of equity shares*

Pursuant (o resolution passed by the Board of Directors on January 28, 2025 and resolulion passed by the Shareholders on January 29, 2025, the company has made Sub-division of |
(one) equily share of nominal/face value of-Rs 10 into 2 (iwo) equity shares of nominal/face value of Rs § each, fully paid-up w.e f, January 31, 2025 Accordingly, the authorised share
capital of our Company was sub-divided from 3,50,00,000 equity shares of face value of Z10 each to 7.00.00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs 5 each

Noles:
i) Reconciliation of Authorised equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars March 31, 2025 Mupreh 31,2024
No. of shures Amouni Mo, of shares  Amount
Balance at the beginning of the vear 3,50,00,000 35000 2,00,00,000 20000
- - 1,50,00,000 150.00

Add: Increase in Authorised Share Capital (Refer note below)
1, 50,000,000 .

Add: Sule-division of eduity shares*
7,00,00,000 50,00 3,50,00,000 350,00

Balnnee al the end of the yeir

Nate:
*Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

ii) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No, of shares Amouni No. of shares  Amaunt
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,00,00,000 200,00 1,90,00,000 190,061
- 10,00,000 10 00

Add: Issue during the year (Refer note below) -
2,000, 0, 000 - -

Add Sub-division of equity shares* .
Ounstanding at the end of the venr 4.00,00,000 200, 2,000,000 200,00
Note:

During FY 2023-24 vide board resolution dated March 28, 2024, the Company has issued 10,00,000 Equity shares with a face value of Rs 10 each at issue price of Rs, 250 per equity
share with premium of Rs 240 per share

*Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 5 per share (post split- Refer note above for delails) Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

iv) Shares held by shareholders helding more than 5% shares of the aggregate shaves of the Company:

Name of shareholder As at Maveh 31, 2025 As ut March 31, 2024
No. of shavest % holding Mo, of shares % hulding
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu* 3,59,99,900 90 00% 1,79,99,950 90.00%
Mr. l(m'idee[: Muoturu <1 CH (R 10.00% 20,060,000 10004
* 4 holding as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 - 89 9998% are rounded off to 96 (1%,
#Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares
v) Sharcholding of promoters
Name of promoter As at March 31, 2025 As at Mareh 31, 2024 % change
No. of shares** % holding  No. of shares % holding during the
year
Mr_Chandra Sekhar Moturu® 3,59,99,900 90,00% 1,79,99,950 90 00% z
Mr Ragdeep Moturu 40,00,000 10.00%  20,00,000 10.00% “
Mrs Krishna Kumari Moturu# 20 0.00% - - 100.00%
M. Arundeep Moturuff 20 0.00% - - 100.00%5

* % lolding as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 - 89, 9998% are rounded off 1o 90.00% 0.

# Shares are transferred during FY 2023-24 vide resolution March 28, 2024 to the respective shareholders as indicate above, however the shareholders are categorised in the capacity of
p vide board resolution dated September 17, 2024

Refer note 171 for the details of promoters shares pledged

**Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

Name of promoter As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 % change
during the
No. of shares % holding No of shares % holding year
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu* 1,79,99,950 90.00% 1,71,00,000 90 00% 0.00%
M Rayrdeap Moturn 20,000,000 10.00% 19,00, 0(x) 10.009% -

* % halding as of March 31, 2024 - 89.9998% are raunded wif 1o 00 00%%
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(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per shave data and where otherwise stated)
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Other equity

As at March 31,2025  As at March 31, 2024

Reserves and surplus

Securities premium [Refet Note (i) below] 240.00 240.00

Retained eamings [Refer Note (ii} below] 91882 430.96

Debenture redemption reserve [Refer Note (iii) below] 15.00 -

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan [Refer Note (iv) below] 2.53 215

Total other equity 1,176.35 673.11

Notes:

Movement in reserves and surplus For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Securities premiuvm

Balance at the beginning of the year 240.00 =

Add: lssue of equity shares (refer note 15) - 240.00

Balance at the end of the year 240.00 240.00

(ii) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 430.96 139.91

Less: Transfer to Debenture redemption reserve (15.00) -

Add: Net profit for the vear 502.86 291.05

Balance at the end of the year 918.82 430.96

(iii) Debenture redemption reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year = -

Add: Transfer from retained earnings 15.00 -

Balance at the end of the year 15.00 -

(iv) Other comprehensive income (OCI)

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (liability net of tax)

Balance at the beginning of the year 215 1.40

Add : Changes during the year 0.38 0.75
2.53 2.15

Balance at the end of the vear

Nature of reserves:
(a) Securities premium
Securities premium represents the amount received in excess of the face value of the equity shares. The utilisation of the securities premium reserve is governed by the section 52

of the Act.

(b) Retained earnings
Retained eamings represents the cumulative undistributed profits of the Company and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act

(c) Debenture Redemption Reserve
Represents the amount transferred to separate reserve on account of issue of Redeemable non-convertible debentures and should be utilised in accordance with the provisions of

the Act.

(d) Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan include re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to profit and loss.

ed
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC 141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

17 Borrowings

As at March 31,2025  As at March 31, 2024

Non current (at amortised cost)

Sccured

a. Term loans
(i) From banks 32087 189.73
(ii) From non-banking financial companies 364.54 2819

b. Vehicle and equipment loans
(i) From banks 133,51 101.53
(1i) From non-banking financial companies 25.69 32.96

¢. Business loan- Equipment refinance
From banks 18.71 18.69

d. Redeemable non-convertible debentures

From others 147.37 -
Unsecured
a. Term loans

(i) From non-banking financial companies 261.12 1522

b. Working Capital - Business loans

(i) From banks - 6.55

(ii) From non-banking financial companies 45.67 36.89
¢. Loan from others

(i) Inter-corporate loan - 59.49
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (413.98) (117.54)
Total non current borrowings 903.50 371.71
Current (at amortised cost)
Secured
a. Loans repayable on demand from banks

(i) Working capital demand loans 205.57 213.3]

(1i) Cash credit facilities 469.20 453.40
b. Working capital facility - Channel finance

(i) From non-banking financial companies 118,35 106.89
Unsecured
a. Working capital facility - Channel finance

(i) From non-banking financial companies 13826 155.15

(1i) Through TReDs platform 868.83 431.19
b. Repayable on demand

(i) From related parties 11.82 140

(ii) From others 221 -
Add: Current maturities of long-term borrowings 413.98 117.54
Total current borrowings 2,228.22 1,478.88

Refer Note 35 for fair value measurements and Note 36 for information about the Company’s exposure to financial risks




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming pait of C: lidated Fi ial S (

(All amounts are Rs_ in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

17.1  Summary of borrowing terms:
The repayment lerms and maturily terms of borrowings as stated below

Nin curvent horrowings

Particulars Rate of interest Number of equal Maturity year As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
(%) Instalments
Secured
8, Term loans
(i) From banks (Refer Note 1 below)
HDFC Bank Limited 900% 21 to 69 months January 2025 to April 2027 2624 4377
ICICI Bank Limited 10.00% 84-114 months October 2031 to October 2033 294 63 14596
(ii) From non-banking financial comp
{Refer Note 2 below)
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 11.00% 60 months August 2028 2138 2819
Aditya Birla Capital Limited 12.50% 72 months February 2031 343 16 -

b Vehiele and Equipment Loans [Refer Note 3 helow)

(i) From banks

HDFC Bank Limited 8§ 55%t0 1025% 12 10 39 months November 2023 to February 2028 6205 6757
Yes Bank Limited 909%to 11 12% 36 to 46 months May 2025 to February 2028 3424 3396
Axis Bank Limited 10 10% 35 months October 2027 to November 2027 3722 -
(i) From banking fi ial pani
Sundaram Finance Limited 1125% to 12.48% 23 10 60 months December 2026 to July 2028 2569 25.57
Toyota Financial Services Private Limited 699% 36 months December 2026 - 739
Yes Bank Limited 11.00% 37 months January 2028 1871 18 69
mphle non-con e (Refer Nate 10 below
RevX Capital 15.25% 12 months and | day March 2026 147.37 -

1125%to |1 80% 36 months May 2026 to July 2026 855 1522
IKF Finance Limited 17.00% 36 monlhs January 2028 25257 -
b, Working capital - Business Loans
(i) From banks
Axis Bank Limited 16 00% 36 months February 2025 - 151
HDFC Bank Limited 15.00% 36 months March 2025 - 288
Unity Small finance Bank limited 17 50% 36 months March 2025 - 196
IDFC First Bank (Capital First Limited) ~ 9.25% to 17.50% 36 to 48 months December 2022 to August 2024 - 020
(ii) From non-banking financial comy
Oxyzo financial services Private Limited 14 50% 18 months October 2023 to March 2026 45 67 3266
Other NBFCs 11.25% to 19.00% 18 to 48 months December 2021 to March 2025 - 423
€. Loan [ - 0 Ty
Inter-corporate loan*(EIR- 9 5%) 600%* 36 months April 2025 to March 2027 - 5949
Less 3 (413 98) (11754
Total 903.50 371.71

\\' «1 X
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

{CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of C lidated Fi ial S

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Current borrowings

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Secured
, Loans vepayabile on demaud from banks
Workiny Capi 1 VODLY (Refer Nuote | belaw
WCDL from HDFC Bank Limited 205 57 21331
(i) Cash Credit {Refer Note | and 4 below]
HDFC Bank Limited 9939 11634
1CICI Bank Limited 56 58 3177
State Bank of India 31323 29929

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 11835 106 89

Unsecured

ATy ATH = i nanee- {Refer note 6 below’

(i) From non-banking financial com
Aditya Birla Capital Limited 2833 54 97
Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited 109 93 100 18

(ii) Through TreDs platform
Receivables Exchange of India Limiled 65398 29336
A TREDS Limited 21485 13783

R 1] emnrd

From related parties- (Refer note7 below) 11.82 1.40
From others - (Refer note 8 below) 221 -
Add Cuirent malurities of langs-term baerowir LRER 175
Total 2,228.22 1,478,488
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Ardee Engineeving Limited
{formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limiled)
{CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

lidated Financial S

Noles forming part of C
(All amounts are Rs in Million, excepi for share and per share dala and where otherwise stated)

Notes:
1. Term Loan/Working Capital Demand Loan/Cash Credit
(i) Term LowsvWorking Capital Demand Loan/Cash Credit from HDFC Bunk Limited
(a) Primary Securily: Current Assels (Stock, Book Debtors), Plant & Machinery, Fixed deposit for Letter of credit, Bank guarantee, personal guarantee from directors and relative of

directors
(b) Collateral Security: One Immovable property owned by relalive of director and additional three inimovable properties given as co-collateral along with ICICI Bank Limited owned

by Direclors of the Company
(c) Working capital demand loan and cash credit carry interest rale of 9. 35% p.a each and repayable on demand and the tenure ranging upto 365 days
(d) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors and relatives of directors of the conpany.
(@) Term Loan/Cash Credit from [CICI Bank Limited
(a) Exclusive charge on movable fixed assets, Company's immovable property located al Visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh, India and first paripassu on current assels and
(b) Collateral Security: Three immovable properties given as co-collateral along with HDFC Bank Limited owned by Direclors of the Company
(c) Cash credil facility carry interest al repo rate 6 50% plus spread of 3 25% p a and repayable on demand and the tenure ranging upto 365 days
(d) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors and relatives of direclors of the company

2, Term loan from NBFC- (Secured)

(1) Tata Capital loan is secured under the mortgage of Industrial property situated at LDA Patancheru, Sangareddy District, Telangana

(ii) Aditya Birla Capilal Finance Limited Loan

(a) Primary Security: Mortagage of Land and building to be construcied on the land located in Seetharampur, Hyderabad

Exclusive charge created by way of hypothecation on moveable fixed assels of the company. Current Assets hypotheciated as second pari passu charge
(b) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

(c) Equity Shares of promoter Mr Chandra Sekhar Moturu are pledged for the loan facility

Unsecured Term loan from NBFC

(iii) 1KF Finance Limited: Loan is secured under the collateral of the following;
a) Three properties owned by relative of directors of the company.

(b) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

3. Vehicle and Equipment loan from Bank and NBFC (Secured):
Security provided for the vehicle and equipment loans are the underlying assets for which loan has been obtained First and exclusive charge through hypothecation on the assets purchased

from loan proceeds

4. Credit facility from SB1 Bank (Secured)
(i) First paripassu charge on stock and receivables
(ii) Collateral security on equitable mortgage of industrial land with sheds constructed thereon at Pashamylaram, Sangareddy
(iii) Interest rate of 10.14% p.a and repayable on demad and the tenure ranging upto 365 days
(iv) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

5. Working Capital/Channel Finance (Secured):

(i) Primary charge on stocks and receivables funded out of Tala Capital Financial Services Limited Collateral - Security on liquid funds i ¢ mutual funds
(i) Tata Capital loan is secured under the mortgage of Industrial property situaled at [DA Patancheru, Sangareddy District, Telangana

(iii) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

6. Facility through TreDs platform / other NBFCs:
Interest ranging from 9 50% p ato 14 50% p.a, with a credit period ranging from 45 to 120 days

7. Loan from related parties
Interest free loan from related parties are repayable on demand

8. Inter Corporate loan
Inter Corporate loan are obtained at the rate of interest of 6 00% per annum for a period extending upto 3 years and repayable along wilh interest. Interest is repayable as and when demanded

by the lender

9. Non-fund facilities from HDFC Bank Limited/ICICI Bank Limited/State Bank of India
(i) The tenure of bank guarantees typically ranges from 3 months to 36 months, while the maximum tenor for letter of credit upto 180 days
(ii) Commissions on bank guararitees typically ranges from 0.75% p.a to 2.75% p.a, while commissions for letters of credit ranges from 0.70% p ato 1 40% p a

10. Non convertible redeemable debentures
The tenure of the Debenture are 12 months and | days from the date of disbursement i.e, March 01, 2026 and carry fixed rate of interest at 15.25% p.a

The debentures are secured as follows:

(i) Total Security 1 10- times debentures Subscription Amount

(ii) Secondary ranking, charge on all existing and future cashflows of the issuer, existing and future fixed and current assets, other assets, including but not limited (o inventory (if any),
receivables, rental deposits, i ible assels including brand and intellectual property, uncalled share capital etc of the company

(iii) Personal guaraniee has been provided by directors of the company

11. Busi loan- Equi refi
Security provided for the business loans obtained through refinance of equipments are the underlying assets for which loan has been obtained First and exclusive charge through hypothecation

on the assets

12 The Company has not defaulted on working capital loan or any other loan payables

13. Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such borrowings were taken

1. Details of borrowings guaranteed by Divectors and others:

As at March 31,2025  Ax at Maveh 31, 2024

Particulars
Directors 1,312 94 721 08
Directors and Relutve of Directors GEZ 44 44081




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs_in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise slated)

17.2  Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash Mows arising from financing activities

Borrowings Lease liabilities

Particulars

Non-current Current Non-current Current Total
As at March 31,2023 154.81 878.11 12.95 9.32 1,055.19
Cash flows:
Principal paid on lease liabilities - - - 9.47) (9.47)
Interest paid on lease liabilities - - - (2.32) (2.32)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 403.51 - - - 403.51
Repayment of long term borrowings (71.26) - - - (71.26)
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net - 479.72 - - 479.72
Interest paid on borrowings (31.21) (105.45) - - (136.66)
Non-cash flows:
Movement from non-current to current (117.54) 11754 (11.67) 11.67 -
New leases - - 8.98 - 8.98
Interest expense during the year 33.40 108.96 - 232 14468
As at March 31, 2024 371.71 1,478.88 10.26 11.52 1,872.37
Cash flows:
Principal paid on lease liabilities - - - (12.22) (12.22)
Interest paid on lease liabilities - - - (2.32) (2.32)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,070.21 - - - 1,070.21
Repayment of long term borrowings (124 44) (117.54) - - (241.98)
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net - 452.90 - - 452.90
Interest paid on borrowings (78.78) (176.15) - - (254.93)
Non-cash flows:
Movement from non-current to current (413.98) 413.98 (15.80) 15.80 -
New leases - - 33.65 - 33.65
Interes! expense during the year 78.78 176.15 - 2.32 257.25
As at March 31, 2025 903.50 2,228.22 28.11 15.10 3,174.93
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Ardee Enginecring Limited
(formerly known as Ardee Engineeting Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements
(Al amounts are Rs. in Million, except fot share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

18

18.1

Trade pavables

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2025 2024

Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micio enterprises and small enterprises (MSME)* 25824 1,028 37
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,896.83 670,00
Total trade payables 2,155.07 1.698.37
Notes:
Amounts due to related parties out of the above trade payable (refer note 34)
Refer Note 36 for information about the Company’s exposure fo financial risks
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 0 to 90 days.
*Includes Interest on delayed payment to MSMEs amounting to Rs. 1.03 Mn for the FY 2024-25 (FY 2023-24: NIL)
Trade payables ageing schedule
March 31, 2025
Particulars Payables Not Due o] ding for following periods from due date of Payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total
(i) MSME 200.77 57.44 0.03 - - 25824
(ii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iii) Others 1,330.36 528.52 28.65 8.45 0.85 1,896,83
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 1,531.13 585.96 28.68 8.45 0.85 2,155.07
March 31, 2024
Particulars Payables Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 976.46 51.91 - - - 1,028.37
(ii) Disputed dues —- MSME - - - - - -
(iii) Others 494.25 112.13 39.49 23.36 0.77 670.00
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 1,470.71 164.04 39.49 23.36 0.77 1,698.37

e AN
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(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated )

19

20

21

22

Other financial liabilitics

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024

Current

Employee dues (refer Note 34) 2743 2156

Retention money 004 56.42

Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.66 -
28.13 717.98

Other current liabilities

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Statutory dues payable 13.66 20.76

Advance from customers 320,02 59.14

Liability towards corporate social responsibility 1.86 -
335.54 79.90

Provisions

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Non-current
Employee benefit obligation (refer Note 32)

Provision for gratuity 17.30 13.03
17.30 13.03
Current
Employee benefit obligation (refer Note 32)
Provision for gratuity 241 1.91
2.41 1.91

Income tax (assets) / liabilities, net

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024

Provision for laxes 179.81 108.64
Less: Advance tax / TDS (net of refund) (158.11) (103.67)
21.70 4.97

Refer Note 31 for tax expense details.
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(All amounts ate Rs. in Million, excepl for share and per share data and whete otherwise stated)

23

23.1

23.2

24

25

26

Revenue from operations For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from contract with customers 7,767.20 6,205.07
Other operating 1evenue
Sciap sale 21.83 483
7,789.03 6,209.90

Disaggregated revenue information
In the following table, 1evenue from contracts with customess is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major revenue streams and timing of revenue

recognition

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Primary geographical market
In India 7,789.03 6,209.90
Outside India - -
7,789.03 6,209.90
Major revenue streams
Pre-engineered building 3,948.16 3,111.75
Material handling systems 2,414.77 1,221 21
Engineering Services 1,404.27 1,872.11
Other 21.83 4.83
7,789.03 6.209.90
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 21.83 4.83
Over time 7,767.20 6,205.07
7.789.03 6.209.90

Information about major customers (from external customers)
For the year ended March 31, 2025 the Company has derived revenue fiom 3 customers totalling to Rs. 3,822.88 Mn (For the year ended March 31, 2024- 3
customers totalling to Rs. 3,370.57 Mn) contributing individually 10% or more of the total revenue.

Contract balances As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables (refer Note 12) 2,358.77 1,558,63
Contract assets (refer Note 9) 898,78 1,005.74
Contract liabilities (refer Note 20) 320.02 59.14
Qther income For the year ended  For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
Interest income earned on financial assets
- Bank deposits 19.17 897
- Other interest income 0,18 0.12
Net gain on financial assets designated on FVTPL 0.67 0.46
Liabilities no longer required written back 17.79 892
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 024 -
Miscellaneous incotne 0.06 -
38.11 18.47
Cost of materials consumed For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year 329.21 102.87
Add: Purchases 5,600.39 4,306.82
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (1,043,19) {329.21)
4,886.41 4,080.48
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 330.45 335,52
Scrap 1.92 177
Inventories at the ending of the year
Work-in-progress (90.38) (330.45)
Scrap (50.31) (1.92)

Net decrease/ (increase) 191.68 4.92




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engincering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts ate Rs._ in Million, excepl fot shate and per share dala and wherc otherwise slaled)

27 Employee benefits expense For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus 309.60 23256
Contribution to provident and other funds (1efer Note 32) 16,06 1265
Gratuity (refer Note 32) 712 527

Staff welfare expenses 19,50 2208
352.28 272.56

28 Finance costs For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expense on

Bortowings measured at amortised cost 254,93 14413

Lease liabilities 232 232

Income tax 2.55 3.07

Other borrowing costs 12.16 6.49

271.96 156.01

29 Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer Note 5) 47 80 25.80
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer Note 6) 12,29 9.83
Amortisation of intanpible assets (refier Note 7) 0.45 0.22

60.54 35.85

30 Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Job work, installation and erection charges 558.62 546.91
Labour charges 269.67 295.84
Freight charges 108.76 120,16
Rent 157.32 105.23
Loading and unloading Charges 2.83 4.03
Material testing charges 10.83 2.17
Sand blasting charges 9.36 11.27
Site civil works 4527 29.27
Security charges 11.39 7.18
Stores and spares consumption 194 5,08
Power and fuel 66.06 2493
Transportation charges 532 6,70
Repair and maintenance 2080 19.75
Legal and professional chaiges 7.80 8,70
Travelling and conveyance expenses 893 7.24
Bank charges 1.37 5.52
Auditor's remuneration 3.85 3.85
Rates and taxes 16,75 10,92
Expenditure for corporate social responsibility 4.56 2.18
Provision for credit impaired trade receivables 45.55 24.07
Advances impaired written off 19.16 -
Miscellanenus expenses 22.14 2433

1,398.28 1,265.33

This space is itentionally left blank




Ardee Engineering Limited
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(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)
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31 Tax expense
(A) Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of profif and loss:
Particulars For the year ended For the ycar ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current tax:

Cunent tax for the year 179.68 101.20
Adjustment of income tax relating to eatlier years (net) - 16.12
Deferred tax:

Deferred tax for the yvear (9.97) 6.26
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss 169.71 123.58

(B) Income tax expense ehavged to other comprehensive income (OC1);
Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income tax impact on 1e-measuiement of defined benefit plans (0.13) (0.25)
Income tax charged to OCI (0.13) (0.25)
(C) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax 672.57 414,63
Tax rate applicable to the Company 25.17% 2517%
Estimated tax expense on profit 169.27 104,35
Adjustment of income tax relating to earlier years (net) - 16.12
Tax effect of expenditure disallowed under income tax 328 3.08
Others (2.84) 0.03
lucome (ax exj 169.71 123.58
(D) Movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities from March 31, 2024 to March 31, 2025:
Particulars As at Credit/ (charge) in  Credit/ (charge) in As at
March 31, 2024 the Statement of ocCli March 31, 2025
Profit and Loss
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (10.41) (6.18) - (16.59)
Right-of-use assets (4.90) (5.55) - (10.45)
Provision for credit impaited trade receivables 3552 1037 - 4589
Provision for employee benefits 3,76 133 (0,13) 496
Lease liabilities 5.48 5.40 - 10.88
Others (0.56) 4.60 - 4.04
Deferred tax assets (nef) 28.89 9.97 (0.13) 38.73
Movement in deferred tax assets and def n March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2024:
Particulars As at  Credit/ (charge) in Credit/ (charge) in As at
April 1, 2023 the Statement of 0ocCl1 March 31, 2024
Profit and Loss
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (4 .84) {5.58) - (10.41)
Right-of-use assets (5.04) 0.14 - (4.90)
Provision for credit impaired trade recetvables 37.58 (2.06) - 35.52
Provision for employee benefits 2.92 1.09 (0.25) 3.76
Lease liabilities 5.60 0.12) - 548
Others .81 025 - (0.56)
Deferred tax assets (net) 35.41 (6.26) (0.25) 28.89
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32
32.1

322
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

()

Employee benefit obligations

Post retirement benefit - Defined contribution

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and
employee slate insurance which are defined contribution plans The Company has no obligations other than (o make the specified conltributions The contributions are
charged (o the statement of profit and loss as they acciue The Company has recognised as an expense aggregaling for the year ending March 31, 2025: Rs 16 06 Mn;
(March 31, 2024: Rs 12.65 Mn) in respect of the defined contribution plans

Post-employment benefit - Defined benefit
Gratuity (unfunded)

Particulars Net defined benelit liahility - Gratuity plan

Non-current Current Total
As at March 31, 2025 1730 241 1971
As at March 31, 2024 13.03 191 14.94

The Company has a defined benefit gratuily plan in India (Gratuity plan). The Gratuity plan is a final salary plan for India employees, which requires contributions to
be made to a separately administered fund The Gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under this Act, employee who has compleled five
years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age The plan was

unfunded
The plans are exposed to a number of risks, including;

- Interest rale risk: decreases/increases in the Discount rate used will Increase/decrease the defined benefit obligation
- Attrition risk: Changes in the estimation of morfality rates of Current and former employees
- Salary risk: increases in future salaries Increase the gross defined benefil obligation

Gratuity cost for the year ended March 31, 2025- Rs 7.12 Mn (March 31, 2024- Rs. 5 27 Mn) has been included in Note 27 under employee benefits expense The
Company's gratuity plan is unfunded

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit i.e. Gratutity plans are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 6.11 444
Interest cost 101 083
Components of defined benfit costs recognised in statement of profit and loss 7.12 527
Remeasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss / {gain) arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions (229) 053
Changes in financial assumptions 335 040
Experience adjustmenls (157) (193)
Comy of defined benfit costs recognised in other comprehensice income (0.51) (1.00)
Balance as ut the end of the year 6.61 4.27
Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance as at the beginning of the year 14.94 11.60
Current service cost 611 444
Interesl cost 101 083
Included in profit and loss (refer note 27) 712 5.27
Remenasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions 229) 053
Changes in financial assumptions 335 040
Experience adjustments (1.57) (193)
Included in OCI (0.51) (1.00)
Benefits paid (183) (093)
Othier movements {1.83) (0.93)
Balance as at the end of the year 19.71 14.94
Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the present value of the defined benefit obligations include:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 7.02% 7.24%
Future salary growth 10.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate 10.00% 6.00%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Mortality rates 100% of JALM (2012 - 14) 100% of TALM (2012 - 14)

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2025 is 10 years (March 31, 2024- 11 years) for gratuity plan

Maturity analysis
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity obligations are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within 1 year 247 1.96
2to 5 years 552 351
610 10 years 876 608
> 10 years 26,93 2728

Total ‘ 43.68 38,83
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Sensitivily analysis

The impact (o the value of the defined benefit obligation of a reasonably possible change to one actuarial assumption, holding all other assumplion conslant, is
presenled in the table below In practice, this is unlikely to ocour, and changes in some of the assumplions may be correlated When calculating the sensitivily of the
defined benefit obligalion to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
balance sheet

Defincd benefit abligation

Actuarial assumptions Discount rate Future salary growth
Reasonably possible change +1%) (-1%) (+1%) (-1%)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
As at March 31, 2025 1811 2158 2153 1808
As at March 31, 2024 1355 16 57 16 56 13 52
Acluarial assumptions Attrition rate Future mortality rates
Rensonably possible change (+1%) (-1%) (+1%) (-1%)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
As at March 31, 2025 1927 2019 19.70 19.72
As at March 31, 2024 1475 ' 1513 1493 14.93

Earnings per share
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted eamings per equity share computations:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit after tax 502,86 291 05
Weighted average number of equity shares 4,00,00,000 3,80,21,918
Face value per share (Rs.) 5.00 500
Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share 12.57 7.65
Notes:

1. Pursuant to sub-division of equity shares [Refer note 15 for details] (he Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share presented are calculated reflecting such changes
in the number of shares after considering the effect of sub-divison on the outstanding numbers of equity shares for the current and previous years

2. No potential equity shares are outstanding as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 and there are no items giving rise to dilutive equity shares. Hence basic EPS is
considered as diluted EPS
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Related party transactions

Names of related parties and description of relationship as identified by the Company:

Nature of Relationship Name of the Party

i) Associate Ardee Yantiik Private Limited (w.e f November 27, 2024)
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited (w.e.f June 15, 2023)

ii) Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel Chandra Sekhar Moturu, Chairman and Managing Directo
Ragdeep Moturu, Whole-time Ditector
Sundararama Sarma Gorvepati, Executive Director
Arundeep Moturu, Executive Director (Appointed w.e f. August 25, 2024)
Krishna Kumari Moturu, Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. August 25, 2024)
Ravikanth Mallina, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Visweswara Prasad Yalamanchili, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Ravinder Komaragiri , Independent Director (Appointed w.e f August 12, 2024)
Srinivas Aravapalli, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Anjaneyulu Krothapalli, [ndependent Director (Appointed w.e.f September 17, 2024)
Sneha Sunkaia, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f January 27, 2025)
Disha Jindal, Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. June 05, 2024) also appointed as Compliance officer
w.e.f. October 23, 2024)

iif) Entities in which Directors and Key Management Personnel
(“KMP") have a significant influence / control with whom Company
have made transactions during the reporting period/years
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formeily Balaji Drives Private Limited)
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited
Arun Kapital Networks
Arun Computers
Arun Infotech
M/s ARCS
Arovan Logistics
ACS Engineering Solutions
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited

Relative of Directors of Company Krishna Kumari Moturu (Upto August 24, 2024)
Arundeep Moturu (Upto August 24, 2024)
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B

Transactions during the vear with related parties

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Fur the year ended
March 31,2024

Purchase of Goods

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pvt Limited)
Rutee Transinissions Private Limited

Anm Kapital Networks

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited

M/s ARCS

ACS Engineering Solutions

Purchase of property, plant & equipment and Intangible assets
Arun Computers

Arun Infotech

Arun Kapital Networks

Revenue from Contracts

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pvt Limited)
Rotee Transmissions Private Limited

Arun Kapital Networks

Ingwenyi Mineral Tech Private Limited

Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited

Rent expense
M/s ARCS

Interest Expense
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited

Other expenses

Anin Computers

Arun Kapital Networks

M/s ARCS

Arovan Logistics

Arun Infotech

Rotec Transmissions Private Limited

1CD taken

[ngwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited
Anwizen Consultants Private Limited

1CD repaid

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited

Proceeds from Borrowings_Unsecured Loan
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu

Corporate Guarantee Given
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pvt Limited)

Repayments of borrowings_Unsecured Loan
M. Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu

Retention Money Paid
Arun Kapital Networks

Adviances from Customers
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pyt Limited)

46.73
15.80
3.70
138.62

0.19
032
0.96

347

2.10

034
9.51
6.56
19.41
1.04
3.80

50.74
130.00
100,00

50.74
130.00
100.00

41.50
4.57

52.50

30.29
3.96

56.42

81.83
14.57
379.58
0.04
13.88

0.56

12.00
40.07
11.34
31,78

329

1.32

3.94
2557

143.30
59.05

24622
7235

w
-]
-]
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Advance to suppliers
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pvt Limited) 092 E
[ngwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 3.50
Advance taken
Arun Kapital Networks 56.00 -
Advance repaid
Arun Kapital Networks 56.00 .
Staff Advance Given
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 2.40 1.86
Mi. Sundararama Sarma Gomnepati - 0.15
Expenses reimbursed
Mr. Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati 0.77 -
Staff Advance repaid
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 747 -
Investment in Associates
Ardee Yantrik Private Limited 0.20 -
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 5.45
Proceeds from issue of equity shares including securties premium
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu - 225.00
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu - 25.00
Reimbursement of expenses
Arovan Logistics 0.86 -
ACS Engineering Solutions 0.20 -
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 0.75 -
Mr. Rapdeep Moturu 0.60 =
Mis. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.65 -
Ms. Disha Jindal 0.08 -
Employee benefits expense
Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.95 2.40
Mt Arundeep Moturu 0.95 2.40
Managerial Remuneration (Refer note iii below)
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 3.98 330
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 4.80 480
Mr. Sundararama Sarma Goniepati 372 299
Mors. Krishna Kumari Moturu 145 -
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 1.45 -
091 -

Ms. Disha Jindal
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C

Amount due to/from related purties:

Nume of the related party Asut As ut

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Traile Payables
Anlee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Diives Pvt Limited) - 115.07
Arun Computers 145 123
Arun Kapital Networks 265 -
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 3.02
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited 4.05 -
M/s ARCS 221 2.60
ACS Engineering Solutions 874 11.41
Arovin Logistics 1.60 2.86
Investment in Associates (Including Share of profit)
Ingwenys Mineral Tech Private Limited 13.47 6.86
Aridee Yantrk Private Limited 0.17 -
Trade Receivables
Airdee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Diives Pvt Limited) 3.78 -
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 2497 31.69
Arun Kapital Networks - 31.28
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 1443
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited 023 -
Borrowings-Unsecured loan
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 11.26 0.74
ir. Ragdeep Moturu 0.56 0.66
Rama Nimmagadda - -
Managerial Remuneration Payable
M, Chandra Sekhar Moturu 0.68 -
M. Ragdeep Moturu 0.71 -
M. Sundararama Sarina Gorrepati 022 -
Mis. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.16 -
M. Arundeep Moturu 0.16 -
Ms, Disha Jindal 0.09 -
Retention Money Payable
Arun Kapital Networks = 5642
Advanees received from customer
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pvt Limited) - 329
Advance to suppliers
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pyt Limited) 0.92 -
Arun Infotech - 161
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 3,50
Reimbursement of expenses payable
Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.65 .
Ms. Disha Jindal 0.00 -
Staff Advance
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 0.05 512
M, Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati - 0.77
Share Issue Expenses Receivable
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 8.97 -
Corporiate Guarantee Given

52.50 -

Atdee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pyt Limited)

Notes :

i. Personal guarantees were provided by Chandra Sekhar Moturu and Ragdeep Moturu towards borrowings facilities availed by the Company, where applicable (refer Note 17.1)

ii. All the related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and on arm length basis

iii. Liability for gratutity on actuarial valuation basis are provided for the Company as a whole. Accordingly, amount pertaining to key managerial personnel are not jncluded.
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35 Fair value measurements
35.1  The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities by categories were as follows:

Particulars Notes FVTPL

FVTOCI

Amortised cost

As ot March 31, 2025
Financial assets

Investments* 8 8.63 13.64
Trade receivables 12 - 2,358.77
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 1.54
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 166.71
Other financial assets 9 - 1,066.95
Total financial assets 8.63 3,607.61
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17 - 3,131.72
Trade payables 18 - 2,155.07
Other financial liabilities 19 - 28.13
Total financial liabilities - 5,314.92
*Investments in associates are accounted as per equity method

As at March 31, 2024

Financial assets

Investments* 8 7.96 6.86
Trade receivables 12 1,558.63
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 1.08
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 - 24227
Other financial assets 9 1,053 49
Total financial assets 7.96 2,862.33
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17 - 1,850.59
Trade payables 18 - 1,698.37
Other financial liabilities 19 - 77.98
Total financial liabilities - 3,626.94

*Investments in associates are accounted as per equity method

[s)

N X j“
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o
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35.2

35.3

(b)

(c)

(d)

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilitics measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The (hree

levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level |: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items (unadjusted)
Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs
Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e not derived {rom market data)

Particulars

Notes Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

As at March 31, 2025
Financial assets measured at fair value -

recurring fair value measurements

At FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds

Financial assets measured at amortised cost for
which fair values are disclosed

Security deposits

8 863

32.42

32.42

Total financial assets

32.42

41.05

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
for which fair values are disclosed

Borrowings

3,131.72

3,131.72

Total financial liabilitics

3,131.72

3,131.72

As al March 31, 2024
Financial asscts measured at fair value -
recurring fair value measurements

At FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds

Financial assets measured at amortised cost for
which fair values are disclosed

Security deposits

9.34

7.96

9.34

Total financial assets

7.96

9.34

17.30

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
for which fair values are disclosed

Borrowings

1.850.59

1.850.59

Total financial liabilities

1,850.59

1,850.59

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the current year and previous year,

Methods and assumptions

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rates. The own non performance risk as at
year end was assessed to be insignificant. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs.

The fair value of security deposits were calculated based on future cash flows using a current lending rate. These are based on discounted cash flow analysis. They are
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

The Company has not disclosed the fair values of financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents and trade payables, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value

The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV. These instruments are classified as level 1 fair values in the fair value hierarchy
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36
36.1

36.2

36.3

Financial risk management
General objectives, policies and processes
The Company is exposed through its opeiations 1o the following financial risks: (i) Credit risk; (i) Market tisk comprising of interes! rate tisk, foreign exchange 1isk and other price tisk; and

(iii) Liquidity risk
In common with all other businesses, the Company is exposed to risks that atise fiom its use of financial instruments. This note describes the Company's objectives, policies and processes for
managing those tisks and the methods used to measute them Further quantitative infonmation in respect of these risks is presented thioughout these consolidated financial statements

There have been no substantive changes in the Company's exposure to financial instrument 1isks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing those tisks ot the methods used to measuic
them from previous year unless otherwise stated in this note

The Boatd has the overall responsibility for the determination of the Company's risk management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining uitimate responsibility for them, it has delepated
the authotity for designing and opeiating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the Company's finance function,

The overall objective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the Company's competitiveness and flexibility. Further details regaiding

these policies are set out below,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the 1isk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Ciedit risk atises principally fiom the
Company’s trade receivables, security deposils, bank balances and other financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty ciedit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets, The
Company assesses the ctedit quality of the counterparties, laking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is the carrying, amounts of financial assets as per Note 35

None of the Company’s cash equivalents, other bank balances and security deposits were past due or impaired as at March 31, 2025 and Maich 31, 2024

Trade receivables and contract assets
The Company’s exposuie to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit

risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and location in which customners operate. The Company limits its exposure to credit tisk from trade 1eceivables

by establishing a maximuin payment period.

The Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates, adjusted for forward
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates ate updated and Company makes appropriate provision wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves
higher risk. Generally, trade receivables are written-off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity. The maximum exposure to credit tisk at the 1eporting date
is the carying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 10 and 13. The Company does not hold collateral as secutity. The letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance aie
considered integial part of trade receivables and considered in the calculation of impainment. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with 1espect to trade receivables and contract
assets as low, as its customers ate located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets

The movement in provision for expected credit loss for trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars Amount
Loss allowance as at April 1, 2023 149.30
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the yeat 24,06
Less: Utilised during the year (32.21)
Loss allowance as at March 31, 2024 141.15
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the yeat 45,55
Less: Utilised during the year (4.37)
182.33

Loss allowance as at March 31, 2025

Market risk
Market risk arises from the Company's use of interest-bearing, tradable and foreign cumrency financial instruments. 1t is the tisk that the fai1 value or future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates (interest rate risk), foreign exchange rates (currency risk) or other market factors (other price risk). The objective of matket risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to

the risk of changes in market interest 1ate relates primavily to the Company’s borowings with variable interest rates,

(i) Exposure to interest rate risk

As at As at

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1,970,32 1,549.52

Borrowings with variable rate of interest
1,161.40 299.67

Borrowings with fixed rate of interest

(i) Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 1easonably possible change in interest rates on the portion of variable interest-bearing borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the

Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on such floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/
Eff
Particulars decrease in basis Balance e enInEolit
. before tax
points
+100/-100 1,970.32 19.70

March 31, 2025
March 31, 2024 +100/-100 1,549.52 15.50
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Foreign exchange risk
The Company has no loreign cuniency receivables or payables as on March 31, 2025 and Maich 31, 2024 and therefore foreign exchange tisk is not applicable

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities (hat are sel(led by delivering cash or another financial asset
The Company's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due

a) Maturities of financial liabilities

Thie following table sets out the contractanl maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash-flows) of financial liabilities:
) Contractual cash flows
Carrying
As at March 31, 2025 Note amount Total Upto3 Between 3 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5 years
Months and 12 months and 2 vears and S years )
Lease liabilities 6 4321 52.35 5.04 I4.54 14,23 18.54 X
Borrowings 17 3,13172 3,139.25 2,022.50 204 .47 26149 457.82 192.97
Tiade payables 18 2,155.07 2,155.07 1,531.13 623.94 - - -
Other financial liabililies 19 2813 28,13 27.43 0.70 - - -
Total 5,358.13 5,374.80 3,586,10 843.65 275.72 476.36 192,97
. Contractual cash flows
Carrying
As at March 31, 2024 Note amount Total Upto3 Between 3 Between 1 Betwcen 2 Over 5 years
Months and 12 months and 2 years and 5 years :
Lease liabilities 6 21.78 24.50 3.21 831 9.49 3.49 .
Borrowings 17 1,850.59 1,856.76 746.25 736.47 98.27 197.67 78.10
Trade payables 18 1,698.37 1,698.37 1,171.85 526.52 - - -
Other financial liabilities 19 77.98 77,98 21.56 56.42 - - -
Total 3,648.72 3,657.61 1,942.87 1,327.72 107.76 201.16 78.10

The interest payments on variable interest rate borrowings in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the reporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates
change. The future cash flows on contingent consideration may be different from the amount in the above table as the relevant conditions underlying the conlingency change, Except for these
financial liabilities, it is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts

Additional information on the entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Particulars Net Assets i.e., total assets Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive income Share in total comprehensive
minus total liabilities income
As % of Amount As % of Amount | As % of consolidated Amount As % of total Amount
Consolidated Consolidated other comprehensive comprehensive

net assets profit or loss income income
March 31, 2025
Parent
Ardee Engineering Limited 100.00% 1,376.35 98.69% 49628 100.00% 0.38 98.69% 496,66
Associates
(i) Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private limited - - 131% 6.61 0.00% 0,00 131% 6,61
(ii) Ardee Yantrik Private limited -0.01% (0.03) 0.00% 0,00 -0.01% (0,03)
Total 100.00% 1,376.35 100.00% 502.86 100.00% 0.38 100.00% 503.24
March 31, 2024
Parent
Ardee Engineering Limited 100.00% 873.11 100,00% 291.05 100,00% 0.75 100.00% 291.80
Associate
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private limited . - 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0,00% 0.00
Total 100.00% 873.11 100.00% 291.05 100.00% 0.75 100.00% 291.80

Notes:
(a) During the FY 2024-25, the Company acquired 20,000 equity shares at face value Rs, 10 each amounting to Rs,0.20 Mn as subscriber to the memorandum of Ardee Yantrik Private Limited,

incorporated on November 27, 2024 representing 40.00% of the total equity share capital

(b) During the FY 2023-24, pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement dated June 7, 2023, the Company has acquired 21 62% of shareholding in Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private limited (IMT) and
is an associate of the Company.
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39

40
40.1

40.2

41

42

43
(i)

(ii)

Segment information
An operating segment is a component of the Company that enpages in business aclivilies fom which it may cam revenues and incur expenses, whose operating tesults ate 1egulaily reviewed by

the Company's chiel operating decision maker (CODM) to make decisions for which discrete consolidated financial siatements is available. The Company is a design, engincering and
manufactuting Company which is engaged in tumkey PEB projects, material handling and processing solutions, elcctiical and automation solutions, heavy structural and piecision engineering
solutions. The CODM idenlified enlite business as a single reportable segment, hence sepment teporting is not applicable,

Capital management
The Company's objeclives when maintaining capital are:
(a) to safeguard the enlity's ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(b) to provide an adequate 1eturn to shareholders by pricing products and setvices commensurately with the level of tisk.

The Company sets the amount of capital it requites in proportion to risk. The Company manages ils capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk chatacteristics of the underlying assets. In oider to maintain or adjust the capital stiucture, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders or issue new shaies,
The Company monitots capital on the basis of the net debt to equily ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by equity. Net debt is calculated as the total borrowings and lease liabilities

less cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances.

The debt-to-adjusted-capital ratios were as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Borrowings and lease liabilities 3,174.93 1,872.37

Less: Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances (292.00) (266.66)

Net debt 2,882.93 1,605.71

Equity share capital 200.00 200.00

Other equity 1.176.35 673.11

Total equity 1,376.35 873.11

Net debt to equity ratio (fimes) 2.09 1.84

No changes wete made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years

Contingent liabilitics and commitments

Contingent liabilities

() There are no claims apainst the Company not acknowledged as debt as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Corporite g given torelated party (Refer note 34) 52.50 -

Total 52.50 -

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, related assets ate recognised
Commitments - There are Capital commitinents amounting to Rs. 8,00 Mn as on March 31, 2025 (Maich 31, 2024- NIL)

Audit Trail

(a) The Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all the iansactions recoided in the software. Further, there are no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, Additionally, the audit trail of the preceding year, has been preserved by
the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the accounting software.

(b) In respect of Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited (associate), accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all the transactions recorded in the software, Further, there are no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of the
preceding year, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention

(c) In respect of Ardee Yantiik Private Limited (associate), the books of account for the period from November 27, 2024 to March 31, 2025 wete entirely maintained manually by the Company
and has not used any accounting sofiware for the said period for maintaining its books of account, hence requirement of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is not applicable,

Subsequent events
Pursuant to approval of Board and and Shareholders vide meetings dated July 4, 2025 and July 9, 2025 1espectively, the company has issued 410,000 equity Shares on preferential basis at the

issue price of Rs. 425/- per equity share having Face value of Rs. 5/ per equity share (i.e, including Securities Premium at Rs. 420/- per equity share),

The management has assessed the subsequent events to the reporting period and is of the view that there are no material events which require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements

except as disclosed in financial statements.

Other regulatory information

Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder

Borrowings secured against current assets
The Company has borrowings secured against current assets and statements of cunent assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million. except for shate and per share data and whete otherwise stated)

(idi) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank ot financial institution or other lender

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company does not have any telationship with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers presctibed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 1ead with Companies (Restiction on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017

(vi) Undisclosed income
The Company does hot have any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sunendered of disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income-tax Act,

1961

(vii}  Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto curiency or virtual currency during the current petiod or pievious years

(viii)  Registration of charges or satisfaction with ROC
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(ix) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact in the cunient or previous financial year

(x) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the [ntermediary shall:
a. directly oc indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the

Company shall:
a directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

44 The Code on Social Security, 2020
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been
published in the Gazetle of India, However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will
assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective

45 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current year’s classification/disclosures

46 These Consolidated Financial Statements were approved for Issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on August 29, 2025,

As per our report of even date attached

For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates) Ardee Engineering Limited
ICAI Finn Registration No,: 0045998 Chartered Accountants (formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0015955/S000168
“ -
: b WMSW\
e f
P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain Chandra Sekhar Moturu Ragdeep Moturu
Partner Partner Chairman and Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No. 029098 Membership No. 231741 DIN 02010969 DIN 07587747
Aol i ’
//@ Ditha Juolal
Krishna Kumari Moturu Disha Jindal
Executive Director and Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer and Compliance
DIN 10376709 Metmnbership No, A65058
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025




